
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 
TUESDAY, 16TH DECEMBER 2008, AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
MEMBERS: Councillors J. T. Duddy (Chairman), C. B. Taylor (Vice-Chairman), 

Mrs. M. Bunker, Miss D. H. Campbell JP, S. R. Colella, 
Mrs. A. E. Doyle and E. J. Murray 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Management Board held on 18th November 2008 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4. Artrix Performance Report (Pages 5 - 30) 
 

5. Spatial Project Benefits (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

6. Sickness Absence (Pages 35 - 64) 
 

7. Performance Report (October 2008) (Pages 65 - 82) 
 

8. Six Monthly Review of Estimated Outturn (Pages 83 - 110) 
 

9. Improvement Plan Exception Report (October 2008) (Pages 111 - 132) 
 

10. Work Programme 2008/2009 (Pages 133 - 140) 
 

11. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 



- 2 - 

circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
5th December 2008 
 



B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

TUESDAY, 18TH NOVEMBER 2008, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Mrs. M. Bunker, Miss D. H. Campbell JP, S. R. Colella and 
Mrs. A. E. Doyle 

   
 Officers: Mr. T. Beirne, Mr. H. Bennett, Ms. J. Pickering (during Minute 

No's 62/08 to 66/08) and Ms. P. Ross 
 
 

62/08 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor S. R. Colella be appointed Chairman of the 
meeting. 
 

63/08 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. T. Duddy, C. B. 
Taylor and E. J. Murray. 
 

64/08 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Miss D. H. Campbell JP declared a personal interest in agenda item 
7 (Improvement Plan Exception Report), as a member of the Operating Trust 
of Bromsgrove Arts Centre. 
 

65/08 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Performance Management Board held on 21st October 
2008 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting be approved as a correct record, 
subject to Councillor Miss D. H. Campbell being included in the list of 
Members present. 
 

66/08 INTEGRATED FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT QUARTER 2  
 
The Board considered a report on the Council’s performance and financial 
position at 30th September 2008. Members raised a number of issues relating 
to the report on sickness absence and sundry debtors, to which the Head of 
Financial Services and the Assistant Chief Executive responded.  Members 
requested that information on the green waste service and payments system 
be included in the next Members Bulletin.   
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Performance Management Board 
18th November 2008 

 

RESOLVED:  
(a) that it be noted that 44% of PI’s for which data was available are 
 Improving or Stable; 
(b) that it be noted that 82% of PI’s for which data was available are 
 achieving their Year to Date target; 
(c) that it be noted 92% of PI’s for which data was available are predicted 
 to meet their target at year end;  
(d) that the successes and areas for potential concern as set out in the 
 ‘Council summary’ be noted; and 
(e) that detailed information on sickness absence and sundry debtors be 
 made available at the next meeting. 
 

67/08 SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY ANNUAL REPORT 2007/08  
 
The Board considered a report on the Local Strategic Partnership Sustainable 
Community Strategy Annual Report 2007/08.  The report detailed performance 
for the year 2007/08 against the priorities listed in the report and provided 
information about the performance of the Compact Steering Group and the 
Communications Theme Group.  Members raised a number of issues relating 
to the report, to which the Assistant Chief Executive responded.  During the 
discussion the Assistant Chief Executive undertook to provide a copy of the 
Biodiversity Action Plan and the Water Vole Strategy to the relevant Members. 
 
RESOLVED that the report together with the progress made to date against 
each High Level Action Plan be noted. 
 

68/08 SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 2008 - 2011 UPDATE  
 
The Board considered a report on the Update of the Sustainable Community 
Strategy 2008-2011, which set out the overall strategic direction and long-tem 
vision for the economic, social and environmental well-being of a local area.   
 
RESOLVED  
(a) that it be noted that the full Council had ratified the updated 
 Sustainable  Community Strategy 2008-2011; and 
(b) that it be noted that the document had been updated to reflect the 
 new Local Area Agreement 2008-2011. 
 

69/08 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (SEPTEMBER 2008)  
 
The Board considered the Improvement Plan Exception Report for September 
2008, together with the corrective action being taken as set out in appendix 1 
to the report. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception report together 
 with the corrective action being taken be approved; and 
(b) that it be noted that for the 134 actions highlighted for September 
 within the plan 73.9 percent of the Improvement Plan was on target 
 (green), 6.0 percent was one month behind (amber) and 11.9 percent  

Page 2



Performance Management Board 
18th November 2008 

 

 was over one month behind. 8.2 percent of actions had been 
 reprogrammed with approval. 
 

70/08 PMB RECOMMENDATION TRACKER  
 
Consideration was given to the report tracking progress on recommendations  
and decisions made by the Board from April 2007 to December 2007.  During 
the discussion the Assistant Chief Executive undertook to provide further 
information on the Government’s response to Dame Carol Black’s report, 
(Meeting date 18th March 2008, Minute Ref. 93/07). 
 
RESOLVED that the recommendation tracker report be noted. 
 

71/08 WORK PROGRAMME 2008/09  
 
Consideration was given to a report on the Board’s updated work programme 
for 2008/09.  
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that following the completion of Phase 1 of the Spatial Project, the  

Spatial Project Monitoring Report be removed from the February 2009 
work programme; and 

(b) that the report be noted. 
 

The meeting closed at 7.35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Performance Monitoring Board (PMB) 

 
16th DECEMBER 2008 

 
 
Artrix Centre – Trustee’s Report & Financial Statement 2007/08  
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingsworth  
Responsible Head of Service  John Godwin (Deputy Head of SS&C) 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The report is to provide information to Members on the performance of the 

Artix Arts Centre and to provide an update on the current progress being 
made with establishing a service level agreement with the Artrix’s operating 
Trust.    

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 The report seeks Members comments on: 
 

• The current performance of the Artrix centre. 
• The progress that has been made with proposed Service Level 

Agreements (SLA). 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 As Members will be aware on the 20th November 2007 officer reported to   

PMB on annual report of Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust, Trustee’s Report & 
Financial Statement for the year to 31st March 2007.  At the meeting 
members requested that on an annual basis PMB receive an update on the 
performance of the centre for their comments.  

 
3.2 With in the report members will see the sections relating to the Trustee’s 

report including performance information, the independent Auditors report of 
the centre, statement of financial activities and a copy of the balance sheet 
for the financial year ending 31st march 2008. 

 
3.3 Member will be aware that as part of the establishment of the Artrix centre 

the Executive Cabinet in June 2005 agreed to provide funding to the arts 
centre for a ten year period up to £120,000 per year. 

 
3.4 As part of this agreement the arrangements were to be reviewed in January 

2008 prior to the end of the three year fixed period.  Officers have been in 
negotiation with the Operating Trust to establish a formal SLA based on the 
Executive Cabinet report in February this year for the past 12 months. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 

 
3.5 The SLA is currently being discussed between both organisations and 

subject to minor changes around some of the terminology, the agreement is 
nearing completion.  The aim of the SLA is to establish a framework where 
by the operation of the centre will be focused on the key objective and 
priorities of the Council and will ensure that value for money and effective 
use of resources are achieved from the support provided.   

 
3.6 As part of this process officers will be establishing a key set of performance 

measure to monitoring the delivery of the arts centre based on the principles 
shown in 3.5.  This will include a set of structured meetings and the 
agreement of annual targets for the centre including a six month review of 
performance.  However as the singing of the SLA has been delayed due to 
the ongoing discussions, this years report is based upon a like for like 
comparison with the information provide last year. 

 
3.7 Overall the key headline figures are very positive, show growth across the 

programme, demonstrate an increased use of resources and Value for 
Money by virtue of the increased usage.  This is supported by the following 
headline performance information, a full break down can be found in page 5 
of the annual report (please note there is data entre issues on page relating 
to NEWC average usage): 

 
• Total attendance (performances and screenings): 2007/ 08 – 73,910 

compared to 2006 / 07 – 58,274.  An increase of 21%,  
• Increased attendances per performance across the programme.  

 
• Total number of events: 2007/ 08 – 426 compared to 2006 / 07 – 389.  

An increase of 8.75%.  
 

• Total number of Artrix workshop sessions 2007/08 – 355 compared to 
2006 / 07 – 242.  An increase of 32%. 

 
• Total number of days open in 2007/08 – 349, there is no 2006/07 

comparison available, as this information was requested as part of the 
SLA proposal. 

 
• 12 exhibitions in 2007/08, compared to 12 in 2007/07.  This is due to the 

limited exhibition space and the time allocated to each display (1 per 
month).  

 
• Bromsgrove Arts Alive (local arts organisation) contributed 31% of the 

2007/08 programme.  A comparator figures is not available as again this 
was not measured in this way prior to the SLA discussions commencing.   

 
• 100% term time usage by NEWC and an overall uptake of available 

space of 87%. 
 

Page 6



 

• Increased income generation across users and lettings, £396,800 in 
2007/08 against £305,355.  An increase of 23%.  

 
3.8 Although performance on site has significantly improved it is acknowledge 

that there are areas for improvement this is supported by the Council annual 
resident satisfaction survey where 37% of those surveyed were satisfied 
with 47% saying they did not know.  This does lead to questions relating to 
the sites market pentetration and the overall suitability of the programme to 
met the whole communities needs.   

 
3.9 On page 6 of the annual report members will see the future plans for the 

site.  It should be acknowledge that actions contained with in this section 
are designed to achieve the outcomes built into the SLA.  Discussion have 
been held between both organisations and is felt that these improvements 
will address some of the concerns contained with in the residences 
household survey and aid the site to achieve the performance targets with in 
the SLA. 

 
3.10 As part of the implementation of the SLA the Councils will be hosting user 

and resident (none user) panels in partnership with the Operating Trust to 
ensure that future improvement plans address the key issues impacting 
upon user satisfaction.        

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications contained with in this report, that are 

currently not with in existing budgets.  At year 8 (20012/13) with in the legal 
agreement officer will be reviewing the funding arrangements and adjusting 
the Medium Term Financial Plan accordingly.    

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Officers are working with colleagues in the legal section to ensure that the 

SLA that is developed is financially and legally robust and ensure BDC 
objectives are met.  

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1   The formation of a robust SLA will assist the Council to deliver it’s objective 

of Sense of Community & Well Being by increasing the quality of Cultural 
activities in the local area.  Further more it will also help to improve  the 
Council’s reputation by reviewing the users satisfaction result of the centre 
and implementing service improvement plans.  

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

 N/A  
  

8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 

Page 7



 

 
8.1  Please see comments in the Council Objectives Section. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Officers are working with colleagues in the Equalities section to ensure that 

the SLA that is developed will address equality & diversity issues and 
promote a diverse programme that is accessible to the whole community.  

 
10. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Please include the following table and spell out any particular implications in 

the relevant box. If there are no implications under a particular heading, 
please state ’None’:- 

 
Procurement Issues – N/A 
 
Personnel Implications – N/A 
 
Governance/Performance Management – Contained with in the SLA 
being established. 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 – N/A 
 
Policy –N/A 
 
Environmental – N/A  
 

 
11. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
 Please include the following table and indicate ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ as appropriate. 

Delete the words in italics. 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

NO 
Chief Executive 
 

NO 
Corporate Director (Services)  
 

YES 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

YES 
Head of Service 
 

NO 
Head of Financial Services 
 

YES 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 

YES 

Page 8



 

 
Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

NO 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

NO 
 
12. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust, Trustee’s Report & Financial 

Statement for the year to 31st March 2008. 
 
13. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   John Godwin 
E Mail:  j.godwin@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881730 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 

FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2008 
 

Registered Charity No : 1097573 
 

Page 11



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  
 

CONTENTS  
 
 

 
 Page  
 
 
Trustees’ Report  1 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report   8 
 
Statement of Financial Activities  9 
 
Balance Sheet  10 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  11 

Page 12



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  1 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
 
The trustees present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008. 
 
Reference and Administrative Information  
 
Charity name  Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust (also known as Artrix) 
 
Charity Registration Number  1097573 
 
Registered office  Artrix   
 School Drive  
 Bromsgrove   
 B60  1AX 
Independent Auditors  
 
Clement Keys  
Chartered Accountants  
39/40 Calthorpe Road  
Edgbaston  
Birmingham  
B15  1TS  
 
Bankers  
 
Natwest  
Bromsgrove Branch  
124 High Street  
Bromsgrove  
B61  8HJ 
 
Secretary  
 
Ms M D’Andreade Brown  
 
Principal Officers  
 
Mr A Woods – Chief Executive  
 
Structure, Governance and Management  
 
Governing Document 
  
The Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust is constituted under a Trust Deed dated 23 April 2003 and is a registered 
charity number 1097573. 
 
The Trustees of the charity are in the process of registering an incorporated entity (limited company number 
5455644) as a registered charity.  Assuming registration is successful and permission is granted from the 
Charity Commission, the activities, assets and liabilities of this charity will be transferred to the limited company. 
 

Page 13



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  2 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT – continued  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees 
 
The Board of the Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust is made up of 15 Trustees, of whom 5 are from the community, 
5 are appointed by North East Worcestershire College and 5 are appointed by Bromsgrove District Council.   
 
The Trustees of the charity who served during the year and up to the date of this report are set out below: 
 
Ms S Hirst                                   
Ms W Maton                                 
Mr D Trigger                                
Dr M White                                   
Mrs D Wilson Chair 
 
Mr B Adams                               
Mr N Bromley                             
Ms T Burton       
Mr A Howells      
Mr C Smith    
                                                                            
D Campbell                           
Cllr J Duddy to 25 September  
Cllr J Griffiths Vice Chair  
Cllr M Sherrey from 25 September 
Cllr R Smith from 25 September 
Cllr C Spencer     from 25 September 
 
Trustee induction and training  
 
New Trustees receive an induction and welcome from the Chair and Chief Executive on appointment. The Trust 
maintains indemnity insurance for its Trustees.  
 
Risk management 
 
The financial assets of the Trust are invested in Natwest Bank Current and Deposit accounts.  The Trustees are 
of the view that the current investment has a minimal risk for the Trust.   
 
The Trustees consider other risks associated with the Charity and ensure that there is an adequate control 
environment to mitigate them through the practice of fire and health and safety risk assessment and monitoring, 
staff training in health, safety and security matters and the maintenance of safe operating practices and financial 
protocols laid down in the staff handbook.   
 
The Trustees carried out an analysis of risks associated with the Charity during the year and implemented an 
adequate control environment to mitigate these risks.  
 
Organisational Structure  
 
The day to day management of activities, as directed by the Trustees, has been delegated to the chief executive 
who is assisted by a senior management team consisting of an administrative officer and a marketing officer. 
Operational matters are overseen by the senior management team and are carried out by teams of duty 
managers, technicians, box office staff and cleaners. 
 
The Trust is supported in its work by a team of volunteers who staff its catering operation and provide ushering 
services for performances.  
 

Page 14



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  3 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT – continued  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Objectives and Activities 
 
Bromsgrove District Council in partnership with North East Worcestershire College (NEW College) established 
two charitable trusts in April 2003 to manage Artrix.  
 
The two trusts had shared objectives: 
 
To advance education and increase appreciation and understanding of all forms of the arts amongst members 
of the public including (without limitation) the arts of drama, dance, music and performance and visual arts in 
particular but without limitation; 
 
(a) by presenting, producing, organising and promoting or procuring to be presented, produced, organised 

or promoted either alone or with others performances of music, drama or any other form or arts; and  
 
(b) by providing, organising or promoting classes and courses in drama, music, painting or any other form 

of the arts.  
 
The Bromsgrove Arts Development Trust (charity number 1097575) holds the building in trust, and leases it for 
a peppercorn rent to this Trust which operates and maintains the property. 
 
Review of activities  
 
Between 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2008 Artrix opened to the public for 349 days, hosting 208 live 
performances and 218 film screenings to an audience of 40,296 (up 17.5% on 2006/7). The live programme 
consisted of 29 chamber, choral and orchestral concerts; 71 jazz, blues, folk soul and rock concerts; 71 theatre 
performances; 24 dance performances;  7 comedy nights and 6 spoken word events and included performances 
by local schools, youth organisations and community theatre groups as well as professional touring companies.  
Over the same period Artrix curated 12 exhibitions and promoted 355 creative workshop sessions. 
 
Key to the continuing success of the venue has been its partnership with Bromsgrove Arts Alive! (BAA!),a 
consortium of local arts organisations whose members promote professional performance at Artrix (Bromsgrove 
Concerts, Bromsgrove Festival, Words and others) or use it as a performance base for community  performance 
(Bromsgrove Operatic, All and Sundry theatre, local choirs and orchestras).  Their activities made up 31% of the 
Artrix event programme over the year. 
 
Significant project funding received in 2005 from the Arts Council of England enabled Artrix to continue to 
develop its directly promoted performance programme and include within it challenging new work by national 
companies and a schools residency programme. 
 
With key partner NEW College filling every space in the building during teaching hours in term time and Artrix 
hosting an average of 1.17 performances and screenings a day the venue is working close to capacity.  Of the 
1,095 morning, afternoon and evening sessions available in the theatre over the year, 87% were used with 
breaks only being taken for Christmas and a summer maintenance closedown. 
 
None of this would have been possible without generous revenue support from Bromsgrove District Council, 
project support from Worcestershire County Council and the Arts Council of England and the partnership of 
NEW College for which the venue is very grateful. 

Page 15



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  4 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT – continued  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Review of activities – continued 
 
Theatre 
With the continuing support of the Arts Council we further developed our professional theatre programme over 
the year with visits by, amongst many others, the astounding Aiden Dooley with Tom Crean: Antarctic Explorer; 
Guy Masterson with his subtle interpretations of Dylan Thomas’s Under Milk Wood and Fern Hill; Red Shift with 
Much Ado About Nothing; European Arts with A Picture of Dorian Grey; Heartbreak Productions with Wuthering 
Heights and Hard Graft with its brilliant Coast to Coast.  We also hosted our first professional pantomime at 
Christmas and co-produced Charlotte Badger, the tale of a Bromsgrove born antipodean female pirate!  
 
BAA! Partners Bromsgrove Operatic did wonders with Oliver, All and Sundry produced Noises Off, Allo Allo and  
the pantomime Dick Wittington while North Bromsgrove High School presented West Side Story and NEW 
College students produced various plays through the year.  
 
Dance 
Our dance programme really took off in 2007/8 with performances by the Blue Eyed Soul, ACE, Union Dance, 2 
Faced Dance, Motion House and Shobanah Jeyasingh companies.  Particularly successful was a sold out week 
long residency by 2 Faced Dance. 
 
Music 
We are incredibly fortunate to have Bromsgrove Concerts and Bromsgrove Festival as BAA! partners, bringing 
both the best and some of the most challenging chamber music around to the venue.  Other musical BAA 
partners to perform at Artrix were a number of local choral groups and orchestras, creating a classical music 
programme to match any at a similarly sized venue. 
 
Our mainstream music programme encompassed jazz from Soweto Kinch, the Worcestershire Youth Jazz 
Orchestra and the late Humphrey Lytttleton,  folk from Jacqui McShee, Phil Beer and Ralph McTell, rock and 
blues from The Animals, The Blues Band and The Hamsters, soul music from Roy G Hemmings and wonderful 
performances by The Mujenkyo Taiko Drummers and Tango Siempre. 
 
Spoken Word 
Artrix once again partnered the Worcestershire schools poetry slam and through ‘Words’ hosted a brilliant and 
very funny performance by poet Ian McMillan. 
 
Comedy 
Artrix’s reputation as an important comedy venue continues to grow with appearances by Sean Locke, Punt and 
Dennis, John Shuttleworth, Count Arthur Strong and Mitch Benn. 
 
Cinema 
As well as continuing to build Bromsgrove’s audience for specialist cinema, Artrix also took cinema into the 
community by helping to launch a new film society in Dodford, and by running two summer outdoor screenings 
at the Avoncroft Museum. 
 
Exhibitions 
With the help of Worcestershire County Council we were able to upgrade lighting for our exhibition area, which 
now attracts exciting new local artists pushing the boundaries of their chosen fields of work. 

Page 16



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  5 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT – continued  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Review of activities – continued 
 
Education 
Artrix’s workshops programme continued to grow, with a major performing arts summer school and the launch of 
Act It, Stage It and Move It, our three new termly performing arts workshops for young people.  Its partnerships 
with NEW College, North Bromsgrove High School and Worcester Arts Education, meanwhile, produced an 
exciting range of new projects. 
 
Performance and attendance information 
 
 2006/07 2007/08 
 

No
. p

erf
or

ma
nc

es
/ 

sc
ree

nin
gs

/ 
se

ss
ion

s 

At
ten

da
nc

e 

At
ten

da
nc

e p
er 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
s/ 

sc
ree

nin
gs

/se
ss

ion
s 

No
. p

erf
or

ma
nc

es
/ 

sc
ree

nin
gs

/se
ss

ion
s 

At
ten

da
nc

e 

At
ten

da
nc

e p
er 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
s/ 

sc
ree

nin
gs

/se
ss

ion
s 

Artrix cinema 
 

199 6,689 34 218 7,848 36 
Artrix performance 
 

85 12,081 142 106 17,066 161 
Hires and partner 
promotions 

105 15,540 148 102 15,380 150 
Total number of events 389   426   
Artrix workshop 
sessions 

242 3,064 13 355 7,216 18 
NEW College workshop 
sessions (estimated) 

950 20,900 222 1,196 26,400 22 
Total attendance at performances 
and screenings 

        58,274                                                         73,910 
 
 
Financial Review  
 
Principal Funding Sources 
 
The principal source of funds of the trust were grants from Bromsgrove District Council totalling £120,000.  
Grants were also received from NEW College (£23,811) and Worcestershire County Council (£10,000). From 
time to time donations are also received.   
 
The arts centre was open to users during the year and income from users and lettings totalled £301,156 and 
£95,644 respectively. 
 
Investment policy  
 
The Trustees’ investments are held in current and deposit bank accounts so as to protect the capital invested. 

Page 17



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  6 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT – continued  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Reserves policy  
 
Reserves at the year end totalled £51,550 of which £12,290 was represented by restricted reserves.  Free 
reserves (that is those unrestricted reserves not represented by fixed assets) totalled negative £31,360 at the 
year end. 
 
The trustees are continuing to develop the programme of events at Artrix and are investing any surpluses 
generated by the charity in achieving the same. It is the intention of the Trustees to review reserves policy with a 
view to establishing a level of reserves which will enable the Trust to continue to be in a position to operate as 
envisaged. 
 
Future plans  
 
Trustees recognise that it is crucial to the venue’s growth and to its ability to deliver its core values of quality, 
challenge and equity that it broaden both its programme and audience base. 
 
This will achieved by: 
 
Programme development 
 

(a) Increasing the percentage of directly promoted contemporary theatre, dance, music, poetry and live art 
events in the programme, giving precedence to the development of work for/by young people, by 
reducing the number of third party hires; and 

(b) Developing the existing education programme with the introduction of day and weekend workshops, 
particularly for young people. 

 
Audience development 
 

(a) Developing our e-marketing capability to complement marketing through print and the media; and 
(b) Introduce web social networking to improve communicate with young people. 

 
Outreach development 
 

(a) Build on the success of our 2007/8 schools residency programme; 
(b) Provide more performing and training opportunities for young musicians; 
(c) With partners, developing the service we offer to those with particular needs; 
(d) Further developing our outdoor and community cinema programme, and work with local schools on 

developing a film education programme; and 
(e) In local schools providing an artist-in-residence in partnership with the County Council and NEW 

College. 
 
Resource development 
 

(a) Continuing to develop our capital resource base to allow us to increase the quality and broaden the 
range of activities we can host; and 

(b) Seeking funding for the purchase and installation of air conditioning in the Artrix auditorium. 
 

Page 18



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST  

Page  7 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT – continued  

 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Responsibilities of the Trustees  

The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.  
 
Trust law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the surplus or deficit of the charity for that year.  In preparing those 
financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charity will continue in business; 
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements. 
 
The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at 
any time the financial position of the charity and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with 
the Charities Act 1993.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
Auditors  
 
Clement Keys have expressed their willingness to continue to act as the charity’s auditors. 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on 7 July 2008 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
D Wilson   
Trustee  

Page 19



 

Page  8 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  
BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 

 
We have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008 which are set out on pages 9 to 17 
and which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet and related notes.  These financial 
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and the accounting policies set out therein.  
 
This report is made solely to the charity’s Trustees, as a body, in accordance with the Charities Act 1993.  Our 
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity’s Trustees those matters we are required 
to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, 
or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of Trustees and auditors  
As described in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities the Trustees are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepting Accounting Practice).  
 
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory 
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 
 
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly 
prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 1993.  We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Trustees’ 
Annual Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the charity has not kept proper accounting 
records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information 
specified by law regarding Trustees’ remuneration and transactions with the charity are not disclosed.  
 
We read other information contained in the Trustees’ Annual Report, and consider whether it is consistent with 
the audited financial statements.  We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any 
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.  Our responsibilities do not 
extend to any other information. 
 
Basis of audit opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the 
Auditing Practices Board.  An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.   It also includes an assessment of the significant 
estimates and judgements made by the Trustees in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether 
the accounting policies are appropriate to the charity’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed.  
 
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.  In 
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial 
statements.  
 
Opinion 
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 31 March 2008 and of its incoming 
resources and application of resources in the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance 
with the Charities Act 1993.  
 
 
39/40 Calthorpe Road  CLEMENT KEYS  
Edgbaston   Chartered Accountants  
Birmingham   Registered Auditor 
B15  1TS  7 July 2008  

Page 20



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  9 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES  
 

For the year ended 31 March 2008  
 

   Unrestricted Restricted 2008 2007 
  Note funds funds Total Total 
   £ £ £ £ 
Incoming resources  
 
Incoming resources from generated funds  
 
Voluntary income  
 
Donations, legacies and gifts  3 109 - 109 2,065 
 
Activities for generating funds  
Investment income – rents   95,644 -  95,644 68,637 
Investment income – bank interest  3,030 - 3,030 1,435 
 
Incoming resources from charitable activities 
  
Grants receivable  4 153,811 4,950 158,761 176,753 
 
Charges to users  5 301,156 - 301,156 236,718 
 
Other income  6 - - - 4,042 
                                                                   
 
Total incoming resources    553,750 4,950 558,700 489,650 
                                                                 
Resources expended  
 
Activities for generating funds  
Charitable activities   549,980 3,930 553,910 494,466 
 
Governance costs   3,512 - 3,512 3,320 
                                                                     
 
Total charitable expenditure  7 553,492 3,930 557,422 497,786 
                                                                    
 
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources  
for the year     258 1,020 1,278 (8,136) 
 
Reconciliation of funds  
 
Fund balances at the beginning of the year   39,002 11,270 50,272 58,408 
                                                                    
 
Fund balances at the end of the year   39,260 12,290 51,550 50,272 
                                                                   
 
All incoming resources and resources expended are derived from continuing activities.  There are no other gains 
and losses other than those recognised above and accordingly no separate statement of total recognised gains 
and losses has been prepared.  

Page 21



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  10 

BALANCE SHEET  
 

at 31 March 2008  
 

    2008  2007 
  Note £ £ £ £ 
 
Fixed assets  
 
Tangible fixed assets  11  70,620  48,088 
 
Current assets  
 
Stock    4,019  3,421 
Debtors  12 10,318  7,776 
Cash at bank and in hand   94,613  74,210 
                                 
 
   108,950  85,407 
 
Creditors : amounts falling due within  
one year  13 (113,020)  (58,223) 
                                 
 
Net current (liabilities) / assets    (4,070)  27,184
   
Creditors: amounts falling due after  
more than one year 14  (15,000)  (25,000) 
                                     
   
Total assets less liabilities   51,550  50,272 
                                    
 
Reserves  
 
Unrestricted funds    39,260  39,002 
 
Restricted funds  15  12,290  11,270 
                                     
 
Total funds 16  51,550  50,272 
                                    
 
 
 
 
 
The notes on pages 11 to 17 form part of the financial statements. 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on 7 July 2008 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
D Wilson   
Trustee 
 

Page 22



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  11 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
1 Principal accounting policies  
 
 The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 

considered material in relation to the Trust’s financial statements.  
 
 Basis of accounting  
 
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act 

1993 and in compliance with the historical cost accounting rules, on an accruals basis and in 
compliance with applicable Accounting Standards.  In preparing the financial statements the Trustees 
have adopted the provisions of the Statement of Recommended Practice - “Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities” (SORP 2005).   

 
 Fund accounting  
 
 Restricted funds  
 
 Restricted funds represent grants and donations which are subject to restrictions on their expenditure 

imposed by the donor or through the terms of an appeal.  
 
 Unrestricted funds and designated funds  
 
 Unrestricted funds represent funds that are expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in the 

furtherance of the objects of the charity.   Such funds may be held in order to finance both working 
capital and capital investment.   Designated funds are those funds which are unrestricted in nature but 
which have been designated by the Trustees to be used in a particular manner.  

 
 Incoming resources  
 
 All incoming resources are included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the charity is entitled 

to the income and the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy.  The following specific 
policies are applied to particular categories of income: 

 
• Voluntary income by way of grants, donations and gifts is included in full in the Statement of 

Financial Activities when receivable.  Grants, where entitlement is not conditional on the delivery of 
a specific performance by the trust, are recognised when it becomes unconditionally entitled to the 
grant.  

 
• Donated services and facilities are included at the value to the charity where this can be quantified.  

The value of services provided by volunteers has not been included in these accounts. 
 

• Incoming resources from grants, where related to performance and specific deliverables, are 
accounted for as the charity earns the right to consideration by its performance.  Where income is 
received in advance of performance it is treated as deferred income and included within creditors.  

 
• Grants and donations received for capital purposes are accounted for as restricted funds and 

depreciation of the underlying fixed assets is charged to these funds. 
 

• Income from arts activities is included in incoming resources in the period in which the relevant 
activity takes place.  Income is deferred when admission fees are received in advance of the 
performances or events to which they relate. 

 
• Investment income is included in the financial statements as and when receivable and the amounts 

shown include taxation recoverable thereon, where applicable. 

Page 23



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  12 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
1 Principal accounting policies – continued  
 
 Resources expended  
 
 Expenditure is recognised on an accruals basis as a liability is incurred.  
 
 Charitable expenditure comprises those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of its activities and 

services for its beneficiaries.   
 
  Governance costs include those costs associated with meeting the constitutional and statutory 

requirements of the charity and include audit fees and costs linked to the strategic management of the 
charity. 

 
 All costs are allocated between the expenditure categories of the Statement of Financial Activities on a 

basis designed to reflect the use of the resource.  Costs relating to a particular activity comprise both 
costs that can be allocated directly to such activities and those costs of an indirect nature necessary to 
support them.  
 
VAT   

 
 The charity is partially exempt for VAT.  Value added tax which is not recoverable by the charity is 

included in the relevant costs in the Statement of Financial Activities and tangible fixed assets. 
 
 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 
 
 Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation.  
 
 Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated 

residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases: 
 
 Office equipment  - 25% straight line   
 Fixtures and equipment  - 25% straight line 
 
 The charity capitalises fixed assets over a value of £1,000. 
 
 Operating leases 
 
 Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership remain 

with the lessor are reflected in the Statement of Financial Activities as incurred.  
 
2 Net incoming resources   2008 2007 
   £ £ 
 These are stated after charging the following   
 
 Depreciation   23,946 24,284 
 Auditors’ remuneration   2,800 2,700 
                             
 

Page 24



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  13 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
 
3 Voluntary income - donations and similar incoming resources 2008 2007 
   £ £ 
 
 Donations in kind of fixed assets   - - 
 Other donations  109 2,065 
                              
 
   109 2,065 
                               
 
4 Incoming resources from activities to further the trust’s objects  2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 Unrestricted grants receivable  
 - Bromsgrove District Council  120,000 120,000 
 - North East Worcestershire College - in lieu of staff 23,811 23,153 
 - Worcestershire County Council     10,000    10,000 
 
  153,811 153,153 
 Restricted grants receivable  
 - Worcestershire County Council 2,000 - 
 - Arts Council England West Midlands       2,950    23,600 
 
  158,761 176,753 
                                 
 
5 Charges to users 2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 
 Cinema sales  35,392 23,613 
 Catering income  64,342 53,960 
 Box Office sales – Events  190,835 154,450 
 Other      10,587       4,695 
 
  301,156 236,718 
                                
 
6 Other income  2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 
 Insurance claims  - 4,042 
                               
  

Page 25



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  14 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

7 Total resources expended                     Arts  2008 2007
  Cinema  Events Catering development Governance Total Total 
  £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
 Costs directly allocated to 
 activities 
 Film hire and transport 14,036 - - - - 14,036 11,254 
 Artists costs  - 151,779 - - - 151,779 99,415 
 Performing rights royalties - 5,242 - - - 5,242 5,116 
 Catering purchases  - - 31,497 - - 31,497 26,497 
 Other direct costs  - 15,124 - 18,004 - 33,128 22,649 
 Support costs allocated 
 to activities  
 Wages, salaries and other       
 staff costs 40,612 103,965 9,251 17,968 762 172,558 163,002 
 Marketing  4,761 42,849 - - - 47,610 38,183 
 IT costs  1,010 9,085 - - - 10,095 12,242 
 Premises 1,481 5,922 - 7,402 - 14,805 12,637 
 Repairs and renewals  362 1,446 - - - 1,808 7,407 
 Insurance  454 1,817 - 2,271 - 4,542 7,646 
 Licences  - 432 - - - 432 304 
 Heat and light  2,191 8,766 - 10,957 - 21,914 21,695 
 Travel and motor 176 1,581 - - - 1,757 1,052 
 Water  107 321 107 534 - 1,069  (1,108) 
 Telephone 684 2,735 - - - 3,419 3,003 
 Postage  215 862 - - - 1,077 565 
 Office costs  573 1,719 573 2,864 - 5,729 9,969 
 Depreciation  9,578 9,578 4,790 - - 23,946 24,284 
 Bank charges  34 306 - - - 340 446 
 Professional charges  891 2,673 891 4,454 2,750 11,659 5,457 
 Equipment hire  - 313 - -  313 382 
 Other costs  (133) (400) (133) (667) - (1,333) 25,689 
                                                                                                              
 
  77,032 366,115 46,976 63,787 3,512 557,422 497,786 
                                                                                                         
  
 Support costs are allocated on the following basis: 
 - Wages and salaries – actual time spent on activity  
 - Other costs – estimate of percentage of resources spent on activity 

P
age 26



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  15 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
8 Staff costs and number 2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 
 Salaries and wages  159,569 149,667 
 Social security  7,491 6,790 
 Pension costs  3,357 3,115 
                                 
 
  170,417 159,572 
                                 
 
 Included within wages, salaries and other staff costs at note 7 are the above payroll costs plus an 

additional £2,141 (2007: £3,430) in respect of staff training and recruitment. 
 
 The average number of employees during the year, calculated on the basis  No No 
 of full time equivalents was: 
 
 Artistic Director 1 1 
 Administration and support        8      8 
 
  9 9 
                  
 No employee earned in excess of £60,000. 
 
 In addition to the above paid staff, there are 61 volunteers who assist duty staff with ushering and 

catering tasks and the technical team with event presentation.  
 
9 Trustees remuneration and related party transactions  
 
 No Trustee received any remuneration or reimbursed expenses during the year. 
 
 No Trustee or other person related to the charity had any personal interest in any contract or transaction 

entered into by the charity during the year. 
 
10 Taxation  
 
 As a charity, Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust, is exempt from tax on income and gains falling within 

section 505 of the Taxes Act 1988 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 to the 
extent that these are applied to its charitable objects.   No tax charges have arisen within the charity. 

 

Page 27



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  16 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
11 Tangible fixed assets  Plant Fixtures 
  and and  Office 
  machinery fittings equipment Total 
  £ £ £ £ 
 Cost  
 At 31 March 2007 6,981 78,747 4,772 90,500 
 Additions 37,161 1,471 7,846 46,478 
                                                             
 
 At 31 March 2008 44,142 80,218 12,618 136,978 
                                                             
 Depreciation  
 At 31 March 2007 591 39,558 2,263 42,412 
 Charge for year 2,777 20,060 1,109 23,946 
                                                             
 
 At 31 March 2008 3,368 59,618 3,372 66,358 
                                                          
 Net book value  
 At 31 March 2008 40,774 20,600 9,246 70,620 
                                                          
  
 At 31 March 2007 6,390 39,189 2,509 48,088 
                                                         
 
12 Debtors 2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 
 Trade debtors  1,558 5,657 
 Other debtors  - 1,390 
 Prepayments  8,760 729 
 Accrued income                            - 
 
  10,318  7,776 
                              
 
13 Creditors: amounts due within one year  2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 
 Trade creditors   31,538 19,624 
 Other creditors  17,784 9,677 
 Other taxation  4,469 3,515 
 Accruals  20,911 9,920 
 Advance income – ticket sales       38,318     15,487 
 
  113,020 58,223 
                                
 
 
14 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year  2008 2007 
  £ £ 
 
 Other creditors  15,000 25,000 
                                 

Page 28



BROMSGROVE ARTS CENTRE TRUST 
 

Page  17 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
15 Restricted resources  Balance at Incoming Outgoing Balance at 
  1 April 2007 resources resources 31 March 2008 
  £ £ £ £ 
 
 Arts Council England West Midlands 11,270 2,950 (1,932) 12,288 
 Worcestershire County Council - 2,000 (1,998) 2 
                                                            
   
  11,270 4,950 (3,930) 12,290 
                                                            
 
16 Analysis of net assets between funds Unrestricted Restricted 2008 2007 
  funds funds Total Total 
  £ £ £ £ 
  
 Tangible fixed assets  70,620 - 70,620 48,088 
 Net current (liabilities) / assets  (16,360) 12,290 (4,070) 27,184 
 Long term liabilities  (15,000) - (15,000)  (25,000) 
                                                                     
 
  39,260 12,290 51,550 50,272 
                                                                  
 
17 Financial commitments  2008 2007 
  Other Other 
 
 The trust has financial commitments under the following  £ £ 
 non-cancellable operating leases  
 
 Expiry within : 
 one year   1,265 - 
 one to two years   - 353 
 two to five years   - - 
                                
 
18  Related party transactions 
 
 A number of the trustees of Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust have interests in organisations which have 

provided support and funding to the charity in the year. The Trustees of Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust 
have considered the disclosure requirements of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice (revised 2005) and of Financial Reporting Standard number 8: Related Party 
Disclosures, and consider that the transactions requiring disclosure are as follows: 

 
 Mrs D Wilson is the Chair of the West Midlands Council and is a member of the National Council of Arts 

Council England. During the year, the charity has received restricted grants of £2,950 (2007: £23,600) 
from Arts Council England West Midlands. 

 
 Councillors J Duddy, J Griffiths, M Sherrey, R Smith and C Spencer together with D Campbell are 

appointed by, and represent, Bromsgrove District Council. During the year, the charity received grants 
of £120,000 (2007: £120,000) from Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
 Mr B Adams, Mr N Bromley, Ms T Burton, Mr A Howells and Mr C Smith are appointed by, and 

represent, NEW College. During the year, the charity received monies in lieu of staff of £23,811 (2007: 
£23,153) from NEW College. In addition, NEW College hired facilities from the charity during the year on 
an arm’s length basis. 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING BOARD 
 

16 DECEMBER 2008 
 

Responsible Member Councillor Del Booth, Portfolio Holder for 
ICT and Major Projects 

Responsible Head of Service Deb Poole, Head of E-Government and 
Customer Service 

 
SPATIAL PROJECT BENEFITS 
 
1.    SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Spatial Project was a modernisation programme aimed at providing staff with the 

systems, processes and tools to deliver improved services to BDC customers.  The 
project was approved by Council in 2006 and was completed in October 2008 on time 
and to budget. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1   In 2005 a wide ranging investigation was carried out in conjunction with various 

organisations into the efficiency and effectiveness of BDC’s business processes. The 
findings of this investigation are detailed in the Spatial Project Business Case.  The 
business case proposed the transformation of service delivery along with the 
introduction of mobile working and remote working.  The main key stages of the project 
have been: 

 

• data cleansing – Gazetteer, other data sets 
• back office systems and software installations. Process mapping. 
• support contract with MDA initiated for systems in ‘live’ 
• corporate document management rollout 
• integration with core applications 

 
2.2 The project has delivered the following applications and system developments: 
 

• Corporate Gazetteer  
• Gazetteer Management system (LLPG – Local Land and Property Gazetteer) 
• Environmental Health system 
• Estate/Asset Management module 
• Building Control module 
• Development Control module 
• Electoral Management system 
• Housing module 
• Licensing module 
• Land Charges module 
• Document Management system 
• Business Process Mapping 

Agenda Item 5

Page 31



• Mobile technologies 
• Web based access to mapping data 
• Integration to existing core applications eg: Agresso, CRM etc 
 

3. PROJECT BENEFITS 
 

Some benefits are already available from the project whilst others will be realised as 
departments embed the new systems and processes in their day to day activities.  The 
key benefits of the Spatial project are: 

3.1 External Stakeholders 

• The provision of customer accessible information direct from our web site including: 
• Environmental Health (Scores on the Doors) assessments of Restaurants 

and catering outlets. 
• Planning applications including drawings and mapping information 
• Access to the Planning Portal for submission of online applications. 
• Building Control applications submitted to Bromsgrove District Council. 
• Automation of the process of viewing planning applications and submitting 

an objection. 
• The development of the Local Development Framework including online 

consultations. 
• Online applications reduce the amount of data re-keying and so reduce the 

potential for errors in customer applications.   
 

• To ensure all core Council Tax and Business Rate information is based on accurate 
property information to reduce erroneous information being sent to customers. 

• To improve turn around times for local land searches on a sustainable and 
consistent basis whilst reducing the risks incurred by reliance on manual processes 
and data 

• The provision of mobile technology to enable key staff to access their systems from 
wherever they may be working and to deliver services ‘in the field’ to customers.  

• To connect the Customer Services Centre directly to back office systems providing 
a single view of customer data to Customer Service Centre staff. This will enable a 
more proactive approach to customer enquiries and reduce avoidable contact (as 
part of FM2) 

 
• To enable the continued migration of services to the Customer Service Centre 

including: Licensing, Planning and Environmental Health. Offering a more customer 
focused service and reducing back office intervention. 

 
3.2 Internal Stakeholders 
 

• The replacement of old and in some cases unsupported business applications in 
Planning, Environmental Health, Licensing, Electoral Registration, Building Control, 
Gazetteer, Housing, Contaminated Land, Land Charges. 

• The provision of new corporate business applications where none existed for Asset 
Management, Graves, Local Development Framework, Electronic Document 
Management System. 

Page 32



• As part of the maintenance and support contract; the provision of an MDA support 
desk to escalate spatial system problems. 

• Software refreshes are built in to the support arrangement to assist with future 
proofing the solution. 

• The provision of a corporate gazetteer and gazetteer management process. 
Including: 

• An accurate recognised national property reference number (UPRN) for 
every property  

• Link to Revenues and Benefits of all addresses 
• One address style  
• One council database instead of numerous ones 
• Potential to increase tax revenue 
• Electoral roll accuracy 
• Information held within the Gazetteer is cleansed and addresses comply to 

British Standards (BS7666).  
• The establishment of a single custodian of information held within the gazetteer. 

This will enable effective working practices to be implemented for the creation of 
new properties and management of existing properties. 

 
• To provide efficiency savings of £300,000, increase capacity through process 

change and improvement and reduce revenue expenditure in the medium to long 
term as a result of the 7 year support contract. 

• Improved Partnership working eg: Current project to allow Redditch BC to use our 
elections management system to deliver a shared service. 

• To supply a base of spatial information that will support the Street Scene and Depot 
Services. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The project is based on a ‘fixed price’ and has been delivered on time and within 
budget. 

  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
6. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 

The project will deliver against Council Objective 2 – Improvement and Council Priority 
2 – Customer Service. 

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1   The main risks associated with this project were identified as: 
 

• Suppliers fail to deliver as stated in the project plan. 
• Lack of ‘buy-in’ from key stakeholders. 

Page 33



 
7.2  These risks have been managed as follows: 
 

• Suppliers fail to deliver as stated in the project plan 
Risk Register: E-Government & Customer Services (ICT) 
Key Objective Ref No: 1 
Key Objective: Use of structured project management methodology 

 
• Lack of ‘buy-in’ from key stakeholders  

Risk Register: E-Government & Customer Services (ICT) 
Key Objective Ref No: 1 
Key Objective: Monthly Project Board meetings chaired by CEO 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Each of the business applications links to one common source of information and  

provides the customer with consistent, accurate and current information about the 
services delivered by BDC. It also enables BDC to provide services in a way and at a 
time that suits our customer’s needs. 

 
9. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS 

 
Name:   Deb Poole – Head of E-Government and Customer Services 
E Mail:  d.poole@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       01527 881256 

 

Page 34



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

16TH DECEMBER 2008 
 
 

SICKNESS ABSENCE 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Roger Smith 
Responsible Head of Service Joanne Pitman 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The report is provided in response to a request from PMB to update the Board on 

the Council’s level of sickness absence, how this compares to the national 
picture and to consider the interventions currently used to reduce these levels in 
comparison with nationally recognised interventions, and to highlight areas where 
further action could be taken, with appropriate financial support.  The report also 
updates the Board on the Government’s response to Dame Carol Black’s report 
‘Working for a healthier tomorrow’. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 For the content of the report to be noted. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 PMB routinely tracks the performance of sickness absence levels across the 

council, and, whilst performance improved significantly during the first quarter of 
2008/09, the Board has expressed concern that performance has dropped 
markedly again since July 2008.  The Board has therefore requested further 
information/explanation about the interventions currently in place and any issues 
within the Council that may be affecting employee absence levels.  The Board is 
also closely monitoring the development of Dame Carol Black’s report in relation 
to absence. 

 
3.2 As a result of the increasing levels of absence across the Council, a 

Performance clinic was held on 22nd October 2008, where national and local 
measures to reduce sickness absence were considered, together with the 
effectiveness of the Council’s current sickness absence policy and whether this 
needed to be revised.   

 
3.3 The average age of the workforce was also discussed as to whether this could 

be a contributing factor to the levels of sickness, particularly being mindful of the 
long-term sickness cases in the year to date.   

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 35



 

3.4 There was an acceptance that on the whole the sickness absence recorded was 
genuine.  It was acknowledged, however, that the levels continued to be too high, 
which impacts on the Council’s service delivery and that further interventions 
needed to be considered to reverse the upward trend in absence levels. 

 
3.5 Street Scene and Community were highlighted as a service area where the 

sickness absence policy was now embedded and that, following some initial 
problems, employees were progressing to the formal stages of the process.  It 
was noted that one employee had been dismissed for persistent short-term 
sickness within this service-area. 

 
3.6 It was agreed that further analysis was needed into the main causes of sickness 

absence at the Council and to consider the effectiveness of the Council’s existing 
interventions (including the Sickness Absence Policy) in a national context and to 
consider what further action could be taken. 

 
3.7 National Findings in relation to sickness absence: Levels of sickness 

absence, as reported in the recent Confederation of British Industries (CBI) and 
AXA report for the UK stand at an average of 6.7 days per employee which 
equates to 3.3% of working time and some 172 million lost days across the UK 
Economy. 

 
3.8 Absence Levels: The CIPD Annual Survey 2008 reports that absence levels in 

the public sector remain the highest at an average of 9.8 days per employee, per 
year but have reduced slightly compared with the previous year when the 
absence level was 10.3 days.  Paragraph 3.19 details the Council’s current 
performance level and how it compares against these performance statistics. 

 
3.9 Causes of Absence: The main cause of short-term absence according to the 

CIPD research for both manual and non-manual workers is minor illnesses such 
as colds, flu and stomach upsets.  Among manual workers, the next main causes 
of short-term absence are back-pain, musculoskeletal injuries, stress and home 
and family responsibilities.  Among non-manual workers, besides minor illnesses, 
the major causes of short-term absence for non-manual workers are stress, 
musculoskeletal injuries, back pain and home and family responsibilities. 

 
3.10 The research goes on to highlight the main causes of long-term absence among 

manual workers are acute medical conditions, followed by back pain, 
musculoskeletal conditions, stress and mental health problems.  Among non-
manual workers, stress is the number one cause of long-term absence, followed 
by acute medical conditions, mental health problems such as anxiety and 
depression, musculoskeletal conditions and back pain.  An analysis of the 
causes of sickness absence in the current year is being undertaken and will be 
reported orally to this meeting of PMB. 

 
3.11 Managing Absence:  CIPD research shows that return-to-work interviews are 

rated as the most effective approach to managing short-term absence, followed 
by trigger mechanisms.  The top three most highly rated approaches to 

Page 36



 

managing long-term absence are occupational health support, the provision of 
rehabilitation programmes and flexible working. 

 
3.12 Nationally Recognised Interventions: Employee Well-being 

Programmes/Employee Well-being Strategy are a means of providing benefits to 
employees.  The most common elements include: 

 
• access to counselling services;* 
• stop smoking support; 
• employee assistance programmes; 
• healthy eating options in staff restaurants;* 
• subsidised gym membership;* 
• advice on healthy eating; 
• access to physiotherapy; 
• health screening. 

 
In addition to these interventions, imaginative or interesting interventions cited in 
the LGE Sickness Absence Levels and Causes Survey 2006-2007 include: 

 
• rigorous monitoring of sickness absence through an absence 

management policy; * 
• training of staff, particularly managers, in sickness absence policies;* 
• greater role for occupational health; 
• incentives (e.g. quarterly prize draws or additional days leave for those 

who had not had any absence); 
• health promotion schemes and assessment; 
• fast tracking medical appointments; 
• fitness promotion schemes and assessments; 
• independent healthcare schemes where employees pay as part of their 

salaries; 
• help with debt; 
• free fresh fruit; 
• health insurance; 
• critical illness insurance; 
• hydration promotion. 

 
* These interventions are those which are currently used by the Council, some of 
which are discussed in more detail below. 
 
3.13 National Costs of Absence: Direct – the direct cost of absence, according to the 

Confederation of British Industries (CBI) and AXA report for the UK fell slightly in 
2007, to £517 per year per employee.  Extrapolating this across the UK 
economy, more than £13.2 billion was lost last year.  Direct costs are: Salary, NI, 
Sick pay, over-time and paying for cover (i.e. agency staff at the Depot needed to 
complete crews). 

 
3.14 Indirect costs – the average indirect cost of absence was £263 per employee per 

year.  Indirect costs are: Management time to administer absence policies, 

Page 37



 

reallocate work, source cover, wider impact on team, potential delayed project 
delivery, potential impact on customer service. 

 
3.15 Combined Costs – £780 per employee - the overall cost of absence for the UK 

was close to £20 billion.  Absence costs were higher in the public sector (£692) 
than in the private sector (£459).  According to these statistics, the inclusion of 
indirect costs increases average absence costs by over 50%. 

 
3.16 Government Paper ‘Improving Health and Work: Changing Lives’:  The 

Government has now issued a full response to Dame Carol Black’s report 
‘Working for a Healthier Tomorrow’ which was published in March 2008.  This 
response was published on 25th November 2008 and is built around three key 
aspirations to enable the delivery of their wider vision:  

 
• Creating new perspectives on health and work; 
• Improving work and workplaces; and 
• Supporting people to work. 
 

3.17 The following key initiatives have been included in the Government’s plans: 
 

• Electronic ‘fit note’: A new electronic ‘fit note’ will replace the current 
medical certificate, and help GPs switch the focus of their advice to what 
people can do rather than what they cannot.  The new ‘fit note’ will help 
employers and individuals have better access to timely information about 
when and how to return to work. The revised form is more user-friendly, 
simpler to complete and supports GPs to provide the best advice to their 
patients on fitness for work. It will also help employers consider whether 
an earlier return to work can be accommodated in the workplace and 
how this might be achieved.  The Government will consult formally on 
the regulations required to change the certificate early in 2009. 

 
• A National Education Programme for GPs: Intended to improve GPs 

knowledge, skills and confidence when dealing with health and work 
issues, enabling them to adapt the advice they give to help people stay 
in or return to work; 

 
• The Business HealthCheck Tool: has been designed to enable 

businesses to estimate the costs of sickness absence, turnover, worker 
ill-health and injury in their organisation; enable employers to identify the 
savings that could be generated by investing in health and well-being 
programmes; and help in measuring the return on investment; 

 
• Piloting Early Intervention Services:  A range of services will be piloted in 

2009 and will seek to help individuals by making access to work-related 
health support more widely available.  Helping those people who are 
inactive because of a health condition or a disability find work was at the 
heart of Dame Carol’s Review. 

 

Page 38



 

3.18 Summary of Performance to Date: The Sickness Absence Performance update 
for October was recently forwarded to Heads of Service and Cabinet members 
and highlights the extent to which the sickness absence levels have again 
increased across the Council. 

 
3.19 The projected out-turn figure for 2008/09 is now standing at 10.57 days (based 

upon accumulated figures within the performance year to date) against a year-
end target of 8.75 days per full-time equivalent. 

 
3.20 The overall trend for October was upward, and compared to the same time last 

year, there has been an increase in the overall sickness absence levels across 
the Council (of 282.5 days) with only three service areas in a better position than 
the same time last year (Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services, Finance and 
HR&OD).    

 
3.21 Only three departments (Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services, HR&OD and 

Planning & Environment) are green against the Council’s overall corporate target 
of 8.75 days sickness absence for the year.   

 
3.22 The average age of the workforce as at 1st November 2008, is 41.7 years. 
 
3.23 The graphs and spreadsheets within Appendix 1 are included to highlight the 

increase in overall sickness absence across the Council. 
 
3.24 Current Interventions: The Sickness Absence policy was revised during 2006 

and, following Union agreement, was implemented in January 2007.  A summary 
document and a one-page reporting procedure were also developed and are 
available to all managers and employees via the intranet.  Sickness absence 
training was provided for all managers to ensure they understood their 
responsibilities under the new policy as well as providing general sickness 
absence case management guidance.  In addition workshops at supervisor level 
have also been undertaken to assist managers on a practical level. 

 
3.25 The sickness absence policy splits absence into Long-term sickness and Short-

term sickness, with specific guidance on the effective management of both. 
 
3.26 The policy contains ‘trigger points’ in relation to an individual employee’s 

sickness absence level to enable Managers to make an assessment as to 
whether further action is required.  This action is taken at one of three levels: 
Informal, Formal 1 and Formal 2. 

 
3.27 The number of employees across all departments of the Council currently being 

reviewed under the Sickness Absence Policy at the various levels is broken 
down below. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

Service Informal Formal 1 Formal 2 Dismissal 
Street Scene & 
Community 

22 
 

1 1 1 

HR & OD 0 0 0 0 
Legal, Equalities & 
Democratic 

0 0 0 0 

CEO 0 0 0 0 
Planning & Environment 0 0 0 0 
Finance 0 0 0 0 
E-Government & 
Customer Services 

0 0 0 0 

Totals 22 1 1 1 
 
3.28 Sickness Reviews with Heads of Service.  Following the receipt of the 

Sickness Absence Performance Updates (issued monthly), all Heads of 
Service meet with Human Resource Advisors to discuss the levels of sickness 
absence within individual services.  

 
3.29 Return To Work Interviews. Heads of Service are asked regularly to remind all 

service managers and departmental management teams that return to work 
interviews and prompt completion of the associated forms are an essential part of 
the sickness absence policy and our strategy to reduce sickness absence levels.  
Effective return-to-work interviews are recognised as being one of the most 
positive forms of managing sickness absence. 

 
3.30 Occupational Health Referrals.  The Council currently engages the services of 

Performance Through Health (PTH), an independent Occupational Health 
Service, for specific guidance and advice on managing long-term sickness cases 
and persistent short-term sick offenders, as well as pre-employment screening. 

 
3.31 Access to Counselling.  The Council, through PTH, provide a counselling 

service to employees who are experiencing difficulties in both their working and 
personal lives. 

 
3.32 Rehabilitation Programmes.  The Council, with advice from PTH, support 

employees returning from periods of absence through phased return to work 
programmes, payment for physiotherapy and alternative therapies, to aid an 
earlier return to work date and in some cases to ensure that employees remain in 
work. 

 
3.33 Flexible working/Homeworking.  The Council considers all requests for flexible 

working in line with our statutory obligations and seeks to support employees 
wherever possible.  This is one area of policy development which is due to be 
reviewed in line with the HR&OD Business Plan for next year.  Specifically this 
will involve the review of Work/life Balance and Family Friendly policies and 
approaches, with the aim of underpinning our commitment to becoming an 
employer of choice, which in turn could have an effect on absence levels. 

 

Page 40



 

3.34 Back-Care Workshops. The Council organises manual handling training for all 
staff and has now incorporated a back-care programme designed to reduce 
work-related injuries, specifically to backs. 

 
3.35 Employee Well-Being. The Council is currently working in partnership with the 

local Primary Care Trust, predominantly in relation to the health and well-being of 
the community, however also focussing on employees.  There have been several 
well-being/awareness days, which have raised awareness of mental health 
issues, as well as offering a range of alternative therapies for employees to 
experience.  In line with the HR&OD Business Plan for 2010/11, the Council are 
also committed to delivering a comprehensive Employee Health and Well-being 
programme. 

 
3.36 Stress Survey, Stress Awareness Training 

As part of its commitment to reducing sickness absence levels and improving our 
approach to employee welfare, the Council undertook its first employee stress 
survey in 2007.  The results were particularly pleasing with 3 out of the 6 HSE 
standards being achieved/exceeded, and the remaining 3 falling slightly short of 
the standard. Consequently a corporate stress audit action plan was developed 
as a way of responding to this, and acting as a further intervention to managing 
absence levels.  The first action taken was to hold a series of training events for 
managers to raise awareness of stress amongst their team members.  Training 
for employees will commence in the new year. 

 
3.37 Proposed Additional Intervention: In addition to the above interventions 

currently being used by the Council, a funding request was submitted for 2009/10 
for the introduction of an integrated sickness absence management system 
across the Council.  This bid was considered by CMT and ranked in priority order 
along with all other budget bids against how they each contributed to the 
Council’s corporate priorities, and affordability.  CMT ranked the bid as medium 
priority.  Consequently the bid did not proceed to the first stage recommendation 
of the budget proposals to Cabinet, and is therefore not likely to attract funding in 
the forthcoming year.  Without such additional funding further managerial 
interventions are therefore extremely limited in what they can achieve by way of 
reducing current absence levels. 

 
3.38 The sickness absence management system provided by AHP (Active Health 

Partners) seeks to reduce absence through a combination of medical expertise 
and technology that focuses on reporting and managing illness from ‘day one’.  
Their proactive management service has been proven to cut absence in the 
workplace by over 30%, whilst offering obvious benefits to the employee of 24/7 
access to health advice.  Case study examples include the London Borough of 
Newham, where absence was reduced by approximately 40%, South 
Bedfordshire District Council, where absence reduced by over 30%, and more 
locally Sandwell Homes have reduced their absence from 14 days per FTE to 
9.77 in six months). 

 
 

Page 41



 

3.39 Attached as Appendix 2 is the AHP White Paper ‘Calculating the cost of 
absence’, which considers the impact of sickness absence on an organisation’s 
ability to operate efficiently.  Both direct and indirect costs are discussed as well 
as encouraging a wider understanding of the cost of absence.   

 
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The current estimated direct cost of Sickness for the Council, based on 351 full-

time equivalent positions, with an annual average salary of £21,443 (excluding 
National Insurance costs, Pension contribution etc), with an absence rate of 4.64% 
(10.57 days per employee per annum) equates to £349,229.27.  A 20% reduction 
in absence would equate to £70,297.  In addition to these costs, some service 
areas (Street Scene and Community in particular) can make direct savings through 
lower absence levels because the need to employ temporary agency cover would 
reduce.  Essentially, lower absence levels result in productivity/capacity gain for 
the organisation and thus increased levels of organisational performance/output.  

 
4.2  Appendix 3 – The attached AHP spreadsheet highlights the monetary savings 

achievable. The costs submitted within the original bid have remained the same, 
however, the savings are potentially now greater – as these were originally based 
on a sickness absence rate of 7.77 days, which has now increased to 10.57 days 
per employee. 
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1    Council Objective Two: Improvement 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
 

• Negative commentary within the CPA Inspection Report in relation to capacity 
as a direct result of  absence levels 

• Reducing capacity/performance output as a result of high absence levels. 
• Inability to proceed with any further organisational interventions due to 
absence of funding 

 
  

7.2    These risks are being managed as follows:  
 

•   Reducing capacity/performance output as a result of high absence levels 
 

Risk Register: HR&OD Services 
Key Objective Ref No: 1 (sickness absence)   

Page 42



 

Actions: 1.1 Training for all managers, 1.5 monitoring of Government’s 
agenda, 1.6 Consideration of AHP medical support services 1.7 Monitor 
performance monthly. 
 

7.3 Currently the risk identified in the first and third bullet points in 7.1 are not 
addressed by any risk register and will be added to the HR & OD Services risk 
register as follows: 
 
Key Actions: 
Increase council-wide awareness of limitations of reducing sickness absence 
without funding for specific, nationally recognised interventions. 
  

8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  Continued rises in sickness absence will continue to have a negative impact on 

the Council’s productivity levels and capacity, which in turn impacts on the levels 
of organisational performance/output. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None applicable. 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None applicable 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  

Procurement Issues 
Sandwell Homes have established a Collaborative Framework 
Agreement for the provision of absence management services 
(including call service and reporting to reduce sickness and absence 
levels) which the Council could utilise. 
 
Personnel Implications 
As outlined within the body of this report. 
 
Governance/Performance Management 
 
As outlined within the body of this report, specifically in relation to 
organisational capacity and performance. 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 
 
None 
Policy 
None 
Environmental  

Page 43



 

None 
 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
Chief Executive 
 

No 
Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No 
Executive Director – Services 
 

No 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 
Head of Service 
 

Yes 
Head of Financial Services 
 

No 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Yes 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

 All Wards.  
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1a Graph showing Cumulative days sickness per FTE 
 Appendix 1b October Monthly Performance Statistics 
 Appendix 1c Graph showing Total days sickness per FTE month on month 
  
 Appendix 2 AHP White Paper: Calculating the Cost Of Absence 
 Appendix 3 AHP Spreadsheet 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Dame Carol Black’s report “Working for a healthier tomorrow” March 2008 
• Monthly sickness absence statistics 
• CIPD Annual Absence Report 2008 
• LGE Sickness Absence Levels and Causes Survey 2006-7 
• CBI/AXA Absence and labour turnover survey 2008 

Page 44



 

• AHP White Paper: Calculating the Cost of Absence 
• Government Paper: ‘Improving Health and Work: Changing Lives’ 

(November 2008) http://www.workingforhealth.gov.uk/Government-Response 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Sarah Graham, HR Advisor 
E Mail:  s.graham@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881276 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Cu
mu

lat
ive

 da
ys

 si
ck

ne
ss

 pe
r F

TE
 20

08
/09

in 
co

mp
ari

so
n t

o 2
00

7/2
00

8

4.
33

3.0
1

4.2
6

8.8
9

7.7
9

7.6
9

9.0
8

9.6
8

10
.05

10
.57

8.
58

8.
01

7.
02

6.
19

5.
26

3.
85

3.
08

2.
21

1.
49

0.
65

6.1
5

5.0
1

4.0
2

1.9
1

1.2
9

0.7
4

7.9
7

7.1
8

6.3
9

5.6
8

4.9
7

3.5
5

2.8
4

2.1
3

1.4
2

0.7
1

0.0
0

2.0
0

4.0
0

6.0
0

8.0
0

10
.00

12
.00

Ap
r

Ma
y

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
pt

Oc
t

No
v

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

20
07
/20
08

20
08
/20
09

Ta
rge
t 2
00
8/0
9

Pr
oje
cte
d O

utt
urn
 ba
se
d o
n c
um
ula
tive
 da
ta

 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



S
ic

kn
es

s 
F

ig
ur

es
 f

o
r 

20
08

/2
00

9 
b

y 
S

er
vi

ce

Tota
l F

TE @
 M

ay
 08

Act
ual 

no o
f e

m
plo

ye
es

 - 

August

SERVIC
E

Tota
l S

ick
nes

sday
s A

pril
 08

 

& o
n

Day
s p

er
 F

TE
-Yea

r t
o D

at
e

Pro
jec

te
d - 

per
FTE

Sick
nes

sTar
get

 20
00

8/0
9

Apr-0
8

May
-0

8

Ju
n-0

8

Ju
l-0

8

Aug-0
8

Sep
-0

8

Oct
-0

8

Nov-
08

Dec
-0

8

Ja
n-0

9

Feb
-0

9

Mar
-0

9

28
.0

0
L

eg
al

 &
 D

em
o

cr
at

ic
47

.0
0

1.
68

2.
88

5.
5

29
.9

5
28

.0
0

28
.0

0
28

.0
0

28
.0

0
28

.0
0

28
.0

0
29

.9
5

29
.9

5
29

.9
5

29
.9

5
29

.9
5

3.
00

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

47
.0

0
1.

68
4.

00
13

.0
0

0.
00

3.
00

5.
00

5.
00

17
.0

0
0.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
13

0.
46

0.
00

0.
11

0.
18

0.
18

0.
61

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
.0

0
C

E
O

 &
 P

o
lic

y
10

3.
50

7.
39

12
.6

7
6.

0
13

.1
7

14
.0

0
14

.0
0

14
.0

0
14

.0
0

14
.0

0
14

.0
0

13
.1

7
13

.1
7

13
.1

7
13

.1
7

13
.1

7
3.

00
S

ho
rt

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
up

 to
 2

8 
da

ys
45

.5
0

3.
25

2.
00

0.
00

3.
00

5.
00

25
.0

0
7.

00
3.

50
0.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

58
.0

0
4.

14
22

.0
0

16
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

.0
0

0.
00

1.
82

1.
14

0.
21

0.
36

1.
79

1.
93

0.
25

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
.0

0
E

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
&

 C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
20

8.
00

6.
71

11
.5

0
5.

00
31

.0
1

31
.0

0
31

.0
0

31
.0

0
31

.0
0

31
.0

0
31

.0
0

31
.0

1
31

.0
1

31
.0

1
31

.0
1

31
.0

1
3.

00
S

ho
rt

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
up

 to
 2

8 
da

ys
10

9.
00

3.
52

32
.0

0
11

.5
0

2.
00

38
.0

0
3.

00
5.

50
17

.0
0

1.
00

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
29

 d
ay

s+
99

.0
0

3.
19

14
.0

0
3.

00
0.

00
0.

00
38

.0
0

36
.0

0
8.

00
  

1.
48

0.
47

0.
06

1.
23

1.
32

1.
34

0.
81

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

#V
A

LU
E

!
41

.0
0

F
in

an
ce

 
22

5.
00

5.
49

9.
41

9.
0

43
.3

2
41

.0
0

41
.0

0
41

.0
0

41
.0

0
41

.0
0

41
.0

0
43

.3
2

43
.3

2
43

.3
2

43
.3

2
43

.3
2

1.
00

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

11
4.

50
2.

79
39

.5
0

3.
00

19
.0

0
24

.0
0

4.
00

22
.0

0
3.

00
2.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

11
0.

50
2.

70
11

.0
0

19
.5

0
10

.5
0

11
.5

0
22

.5
0

11
.0

0
24

.5
0

1.
17

0.
55

0.
72

0.
87

0.
65

0.
80

0.
67

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8.
00

H
R

O
D

8.
00

1.
00

1.
71

4.
25

8.
83

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
83

8.
83

8.
83

8.
83

8.
83

1.
00

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

8.
00

1.
00

1.
00

3.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2.
00

1.
00

0.
00

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
29

 d
ay

s+
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

11
0.

38
0.

13
0.

00
0.

00
0.

25
0.

13
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
61

.0
0

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

29
2.

50
4.

80
8.

22
7.

25
63

.6
8

61
.0

0
61

.0
0

61
.0

0
61

.0
0

61
.0

0
61

.0
0

63
.6

8
63

.6
8

63
.6

8
63

.6
8

63
.6

8
13

.0
0

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

17
9.

50
2.

94
34

.5
0

7.
00

3.
00

49
.5

0
27

.0
0

9.
50

49
.0

0
2.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

11
3.

00
1.

85
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
33

.0
0

40
.0

0
40

.0
0

0.
54

0.
11

0.
05

0.
81

0.
98

0.
81

1.
46

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
8.

00
S

tr
ee

t 
S

ce
n

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
12

81
.0

0
7.

63
13

.0
7

11
.0

16
7.

70
16

8.
00

16
8.

00
16

8.
00

16
8.

00
16

8.
00

16
8.

00
16

7.
00

16
7.

70
16

7.
70

16
7.

70
16

7.
70

33
.0

0
S

ho
rt

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
up

 to
 2

8 
da

ys
58

6.
00

3.
49

65
.0

0
67

.0
0

82
.0

0
82

.5
0

55
.0

0
11

1.
50

12
3.

00
7.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

69
5.

00
4.

14
40

.0
0

48
.0

0
98

.0
0

17
4.

00
14

1.
00

78
.0

0
11

6.
00

0.
63

0.
68

1.
07

1.
53

1.
17

1.
13

1.
42

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

T
ot

al
 S

ho
rt

 T
er

m
 A

bs
en

ce
 Y

T
D

 
10

89
.5

0
17

8.
00

10
4.

50
11

0.
00

20
2.

00
11

9.
00

16
2.

50
21

3.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

35
1.

00
T

ot
al

 L
on

g 
T

er
m

 A
bs

en
ce

 Y
T

D
10

75
.5

0
87

.0
0

86
.5

0
10

8.
50

18
5.

50
23

4.
50

18
5.

00
18

8.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

T
O

T
A

L
 D

ay
s 

lo
st

 Y
T

D
21

65
.0

0
10

.5
7

8.
75

26
5.

00
19

1.
00

21
8.

50
38

7.
50

35
3.

50
34

7.
50

40
2.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

T
A

R
G

E
T

 s
ic

k 
d

ay
s 

p
er

 F
T

E
 p

er
 m

o
nt

h
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

79
0.

79
0.

78
0.

74
0.

54
0.

62
1.

10
1.

01
0.

99
1.

15
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
71

1.
42

2.
13

2.
84

3.
55

4.
26

4.
97

5.
68

6.
39

7.
18

7.
97

8.
75

0.
74

1.
29

1.
91

3.
01

4.
02

5.
01

6.
15

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8.
89

7.
79

7.
69

9.
08

9.
68

10
.0

5
10

.5
7

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
04

-0
5

30
74

.9
9

73
5.

87
87

5.
43

83
6.

52
62

7.
17

20
05

-0
6

35
70

.5
8

69
5.

38
94

9.
95

88
3.

98
10

41
.2

7
20

06
-0

7
38

06
.0

0
10

67
.0

0
95

9.
50

95
1.

00
82

8.
50

20
07

-0
8

33
48

.5
0

79
2.

00
75

9.
50

96
3.

00
83

4.
00

20
00

8-
09

21
65

.0
0

67
4.

50
10

88
.5

0
40

2.
00

0.
00

Y
ea

r
A

nn
ua

l
Q

ua
rt

er
 1

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
Q

ua
rt

er
 3

Q
ua

rt
er

 4

F
T

E
 M

ar
ch

 0
8

35
7.

66
K

ey
:

 m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

 w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 t
ar

g
et

   
 w

o
rs

e 
th

an
 t

ar
g

et
, b

ut
 w

it
hi

n 
10

%
   

 o
n 

o
r 

b
et

te
r 

th
an

 t
ar

g
et

F
T

E
 M

ay
 0

8
35

1.
00

F
T

E
 M

ar
ch

 0
9

# 
o

f 
M

o
nt

hs
7

B
V

P
I 1

2 
S

ic
k 

D
ay

s 
P

er
 F

T
E

 in
 M

o
nt

h

B
V

P
I 1

2 
- 

S
ic

k 
D

ay
s 

p
er

 F
T

E
 Y

T
D

B
V

P
I 1

2 
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 O
ut

tu
rn

T
A

R
G

E
T

 s
ic

k 
d

ay
s 

p
er

 F
T

E
 Y

T
D

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



To
ta

l d
ay

s 
si

ck
n

es
s 

p
er

 F
TE

 2
00

8/
09

in
 c

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
 t

o
 2

00
7/

20
08

0.
65

0.
84

0.
72

0.
87

0.
77

0.
48

0.
92

0.
93

0.
83

0.
99

0.
57

0.
77

0.
74

0.
54

0.
62

1.
1

1.
01

0.
99

1.
15

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

1.
2

1.
4

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

t
O

ct
N

ov
D

ec
Ja

n
F

eb
M

ar

20
07

/2
00

8
20

08
/2

00
9

T
ar

ge
t 2

00
8/

09

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



A
n

n
u

al
 P

ay
ro

ll 
C

o
st

s 
an

d
 C

o
st

s 
o

f 
A

b
se

n
ce

N
o

 o
f 

E
m

p
lo

ye
es

A
n

n
u

al
 

A
ve

ra
g

e 
S

al
ar

y 
T

o
ta

l P
ay

ro
ll 

co
st

s
C

u
rr

en
t 

A
b

se
n

ce
 r

at
es

C
o

st
 o

f 
A

b
se

n
ce

*
£

£
%

£
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l
35

1
22

,7
22

9,
17

1,
73

5
4.

64
64

6,
90

6
E

qu
iv

al
en

t t
o 

10
.5

7 
da

ys
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 p
er

 e
m

pl
oy

ee

* 
K

ey
 A

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

A
n

n
u

al
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
ay

s 
lo

st
37

09

T
o

ta
l P

ay
ro

ll 
C

o
st

s
In

cl
ud

es
 u

pl
ift

 o
f 1

5%
 fo

r 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

N
I e

tc
.

A
n

n
u

al
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
ay

s 
sa

ve
d

 A
H

P
 2

0%
74

2

S
ic

k 
P

ay
 R

at
io

10
0%

(A
ve

ra
ge

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

al
ar

y 
pa

id
)

O
ve

rt
im

e 
C

o
ve

r 
R

at
io

40
%

(P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 a

bs
en

ce
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

co
ve

r)

M
ar

g
in

al
 C

o
st

 R
at

io
50

%
(E

xt
ra

 c
os

t o
f o

ve
rt

im
e)

C
o

st
/B

en
ef

it
 A

n
al

ys
is

 o
f 

A
H

P
 S

er
vi

ce
 -

 R
O

I

R
o

ll-
o

u
t

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
bs

en
ce

 r
at

es

D
ai

ly
 C

o
st

 A
b

se
n

ce
£2

,8
37

10
%

20
%

30
%

M
o

n
th

ly
 C

o
st

 o
f 

A
b

se
n

ce
 

£5
3,

90
9

 
 

 

G
ro

ss
 M

o
n

th
ly

 S
av

in
g

£5
,3

91
£1

0,
78

2
£1

6,
17

3

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

H
P

 C
o

st
£4

.7
5

£1
,6

67
£1

,6
67

£1
,6

67

N
et

 S
av

in
g

s 
P

er
 M

o
n

th
£3

,7
24

£9
,1

15
£1

4,
50

5

1 
Y

ea
r 

N
et

 S
av

in
g

£4
4,

68
4

£1
09

,3
74

£1
74

,0
65

C
o

st
 N

eu
tr

al
 A

b
se

n
ce

 R
ed

u
ct

io
n

3.
09

%
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 a

bs
en

ce
 r

at
e,

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t t

o 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 0
.3

3d
ay

s 
pe

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

er
 a

nn
um

i.e
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

fr
om

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
bs

en
ce

 r
at

e 
of

 4
.6

4 
to

 4
.4

9 
pe

rc
en

t

C
lie

n
t

(C
os

t d
iv

id
ed

 b
y 

12
)

Page 63



Page 64



 
 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

DATE 16 DECEMBER 2008 
 

OCTOBER (PERIOD 7) PERFORMANCE REPORTING 
 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Mike Webb, Portfolio Holder for 

Customer Care & Service 
Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Assistant Chief 

Executive 
Non Key Decision 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
  
1.1 To report to Leader’s Group on the Council’s performance at 31 October 

2008 (period 7). 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 
 

That The Board notes that 67% of PIs are stable or improving.   
 
That The Board notes that 76% of PI’s that have a target are meeting their 
target as at the month end and that 92% of PI’s that have a target are 
predicted to meet their target at the year end.   
 
That The Board notes the performance figures for October 2008 as set out in 
Appendix 2.  
 
That The Board notes the particular areas of improvement as summarised in 
section 3.4. 
 
That The Board notes the PI’s of particular concern as set out in section 3.5. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
  
3.1  The full list of performance indicators due to be reported monthly is set out in 

Appendix 2 where:-  
 
 On Target  I Performance is Improving 
 Less than 10% from target  S Performance is Stable 
 More than 10% from target  W Performance is Worsening 
 No target set  N/a No target set  

 
 

 
3.2 Comparisons of overall performance improvements this month to last month 

are shown on Appendix 1.    
 

3.3 Performance continues to be held at levels already achieved for the majority 

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



of performance indicators, with only six indicators behind target at this point 
in the year.  Of those six, four are projected to recover during the remaining 
months of the year and to hit target.    

 
3.4  

 
Performance worthy of particular mention is as follows: 
 

� Previous strong performance considerably above target at the CSC 
has not only been maintained, but has improved in October.  In 
particular the average speed of answer improved from 24 seconds to 
18 seconds.    

� 100% of invoices were paid within 30 days in October 
� Streetscene performance continues at 100% clear up within 

timescales for abandoned vehicles, animal debris and removal of 
flytips.  

� Improvements in performance in missed household waste collections 
and recycle collections mean that these two are now have a predicted 
outturn significantly exceeding the target.  

� Performance in processing benefit claims improved considerably 
during October, reversing the gradual decline reported over the past 
months, taking on average 2 days less time to process than in 
September as efforts begin to take effect.  However figures may 
fluctuate in November before normal workload is achieved, but the 
target is expected to be met. 

 
3.5 Performance of potential concern is as follows: 

 
� Sickness absence worsened by 15% in October over the already high 

levels in September and for the past four months has been between 
40% to 60% worse than monthly target.  The projected outturn, based 
on performance year to date is 10.57 days, against a target of 8.75 
days.  However actual outturn is likely to be even worse as the current 
estimated outturn figure is helped by the good figures achieved during 
the first three months of the year, since when there has been a 
significant and sustained worsening of performance.  If performance is 
not improved then the outturn could be of the order of 11.5 days.  
Furthermore we are now approaching the winter period when sickness 
levels tend to increase rather than decrease, adding further pressure 
to the outturn.  A ‘Performance Clinic’ was held on 22 October to 
consider sickness absence and a report was submitted to CMT on 2 
December, a second clinic will be held shortly.   

� Although processing of minor planning applications is currently 
projected to achieve target,  performance will need to improve to and 
be sustained at around 88% each month for the remainder of the year 
for this to be achieved, whereas average monthly performance year to 
date has been 71% 

  
4. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
4.1 There are no financial implications 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 There are no legal implications. 

Page 66



  
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
  
6.1 Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective 
  
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
•  Data quality problems  
•  Poor performance 

 
7.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  

 
•  Implementation of the Data Quality Strategy 
•   Robust follow up on performance issues, including performance clinics 

 
8 CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective 
  
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
  
9.1 There are no implications for the Council’s Equalities and Diversity Policies. 
  
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 � There are no VFM implications   
  
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Procurement Issues None  

 
 Personnel Issues None  

 
 Governance/Performance Management –  Production of the performance 

report supports the aim of improving performance & performance 
management  
 

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder Act 1988 None  
 

 Policy  None  
 

 Environmental None  
 

  
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  
 Please include the following table and indicate ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ as appropriate.  

Delete the words in italics. 
  

Page 67



 Portfolio Holder Yes(At  
Leader’s Group) 

 Chief Executive Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Services) Yes (at CMT)  
 Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 Head of Service  Yes 
 Head of Financial Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Organisational Development & HR Yes (at CMT)  
 Corporate Procurement Team Yes (at CMT)  
  
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
  

All Wards’. 
  
14. APPENDICES 
  
 Appendix 1  Performance Summary for October 2008  

Appendix 2    Detail Performance report for October 2008  
Appendix 3   Detailed figures to support the performance report 
Appendix 4    Departmental analysis of sickness absence 
 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
 None 
  
Contact officer 
Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881602 
 

Page 68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

N
o.

%
N

o.
%

N
o.

%
Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 o

r 
st

ab
le

.
20

74
%

O
n

 t
ar

g
et

20
74

%
O

n
 t

ar
g

et
23

85
%

D
ec

lin
in

g
7

26
%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 1
0%

4
15

%
M

is
si

n
g

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 1

0%
1

4%
N

o
 d

at
a 

0%
M

is
si

n
g

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 1
0%

1
4%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
1

4%
N

o
 d

at
a 

2
7%

N
o

 d
at

a 
2

7%

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

27
10

0%
T

o
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
27

10
0%

to
ta

l 
27

10
0%

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 5
 (

A
u

g
u

st
) 

20
08

/0
9 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 6
 (

S
ep

te
m

b
er

) 
20

08
/0

9 

M
o

n
th

ly
 (

A
u

g
u

st
) 

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

E
st

im
at

ed
 O

u
tt

u
rn

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 P
er

io
d

 0
7 

(O
ct

o
b

er
) 

20
08

/0
9

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

C
um

 o
r 

Sn
ap

?
A

ct
ua

ls
Q

ua
rt

ile
 

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
ut

tu
rn

E
st

. 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

S
tr

ee
t 

S
ce

n
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d
M

C
n/

a
n/

a
29

7.
68

29
2.

64
W

34
9.

70
34

7.
53

W
59

3.
00

59
1.

00
I

T
ra

de
 w

as
te

 y
et

 to
 c

om
e 

of
f O

ct
 (

ha
s 

no
w

 b
ee

n 
ta

ke
n 

of
f S

ep
)

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

M
C

n/
a

n/
a

46
.7

1
49

.4
6

I
48

.5
5

49
.0

0
W

45
.0

0
42

.0
0

S
T

ra
de

 w
as

te
 y

et
 to

 c
om

e 
of

f O
ct

 (
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

ta
ke

n 
of

f S
ep

)

LP
I d

ep
ot

%
ag

e 
of

 r
ep

or
te

d 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

M
C

10
0.

00
1

95
.0

0
97

.6
7

S
95

.0
0

98
.0

0
S

95
.0

0
97

.6
7

I
7 

ve
hi

cl
es

 r
ep

or
te

d 
an

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 
tim

es
ca

le

LP
I d

ep
ot

%
ag

e 
of

 a
ba

nd
on

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

re
m

ov
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 le

ga
l 

en
tit

le
m

en
t

M
C

98
.7

8
1

95
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
95

.0
0

10
0.

00
S

95
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
4 

ve
hi

cl
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
re

m
ov

ed
 w

ith
in

 
tim

es
ca

le

LP
I D

ep
ot

%
 a

ni
m

al
/d

eb
ris

 c
le

ar
ed

 w
ith

in
 

tim
es

ca
le

s
M

C
10

0.
00

n/
a

95
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
95

.0
0

10
0.

00
S

95
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
33

 D
ea

d 
an

im
al

s 
re

po
rt

ed
, a

ll 
re

m
ov

ed
 w

ith
in

 
tim

es
ca

le

LP
I D

ep
ot

%
 o

f f
ly

tip
s 

de
al

t w
ith

 in
 r

es
po

ns
e 

tim
e

M
C

99
.4

6
n/

a
95

.0
0

10
0.

00
S

95
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
95

.0
0

10
0.

00
S

13
1 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 fl
y 

tip
pi

ng
, a

ll 
re

m
ov

ed
 w

ith
in

 
tim

es
ca

le

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
M

C
11

02
n/

a
69

6
57

5
I

81
2

67
1

W
1,

40
0

1,
04

8
W

96
 m

is
se

d 
re

fu
se

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 -
 0

.0
5%

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 
m

is
se

d 
(5

 w
ee

ks
 x

 3
8,

00
0)

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

e 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

M
C

35
2

n/
a

30
0

13
8

W
35

0
15

3
I

60
0

19
3

I
15

 m
is

se
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

 -
 0

.0
08

%
 o

f 
19

0,
00

0 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

 m
is

se
d 

(5
 w

ee
ks

 x
 3

6,
00

0)
 

N
W

B
C

U
 1

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
M

C
35

5
n/

a
18

0
17

6
I

21
0

22
3

W
36

0
33

1
W

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
re

ce
nt

 s
pi

ke
 in

 b
ur

gl
ar

ie
s 

in
 

C
of

to
n 

H
ac

ke
tt 

ar
ea

 a
re

a 
bo

rd
er

in
g 

W
es

t 
M

id
la

nd
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, a
 k

no
w

n 
pr

ol
ifi

c 
of

fe
nd

er
 

w
ith

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

ha
bi

ts
 fr

om
 W

es
t M

id
s 

w
as

 a
rr

es
te

d 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

.  
A

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 ta

sk
in

g 
pr

io
rit

y.
N

W
B

C
U

 2

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

M
C

10
93

n/
a

52
7

57
4

I
61

6
63

2
I

10
56

11
28

I

V
io

le
nt

 C
rim

es
 a

re
 n

or
m

al
ly

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
N

ig
ht

 T
im

e 
E

co
no

m
y.

  O
ct

ob
er

 h
ad

 
35

 le
ss

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
th

an
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
a 

38
%

 
de

cr
ea

se
, a

nd
 3

1 
un

de
r 

ta
rg

et
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 d
ue

 to
 

on
go

in
g 

'o
pe

ra
tio

n 
M

aj
es

tic
'. 

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ol
ic

in
g 

in
 h

ot
 s

po
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

pe
ak

 h
ou

rs
 o

n 
T

hu
rs

da
y,

 
F

rid
ay

 a
nd

 S
at

ur
da

y 
ev

en
in

gs
.

N
W

B
C

U
 3

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

M
C

67
n/

a
30

24
W

35
26

I
60

45
I

S
til

l u
nd

er
 ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 O
ct

ob
er

 h
ad

 o
nl

y 
2 

ro
bb

er
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 o

f B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t. 
 

T
he

 lo
w

es
t i

ts
 b

ee
n 

al
l y

ea
r.

N
W

B
C

U
 4

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

C
71

0
n/

a
38

3
33

2
W

44
8

40
1

W
76

8
69

4
I

A
ct

ua
ls

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 5
 b

et
w

ee
n 

A
ug

us
t a

nd
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

an
d 

th
en

 b
y 

8 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

.  
A

lth
ou

gh
 

an
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 tr
en

d 
th

is
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
th

is
 ti

m
e 

of
 

ye
ar

 w
ith

 le
ss

 s
un

lig
ht

 h
ou

rs
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

in
g.

  
E

st
im

at
ed

 O
ut

tu
rn

 is
 s

til
l o

n 
ta

rg
et

.  
T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ra
is

ed
 a

s 
a 

ta
sk

in
g 

pr
io

rit
y 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
w

in
te

r 

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

1

Page 71



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

C
um

 o
r 

Sn
ap

?
A

ct
ua

ls
Q

ua
rt

ile
 

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
ut

tu
rn

E
st

. 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
20

07
/0

8
20

08
/0

9

LP
I S

C
 1

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

M
C

25
,0

56
n/

a
14

,4
90

16
,7

37
W

15
,0

90
17

,3
62

S
25

,2
53

25
,2

53
S

T
he

 a
ct

ua
l a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
re

 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r

LP
I S

C
 4

S
po

rt
s 

C
en

tr
es

 U
sa

ge
M

C
59

2,
13

3
n/

a
33

9,
94

3
32

2,
64

6
I

39
5,

16
0

38
6,

05
6

I
67

2,
42

0
67

2,
42

0
I

A
bo

ve
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

m
on

th
 a

t D
ol

ph
in

 c
en

tr
e 

– 
ne

w
 

sp
or

ts
 h

al
l s

es
si

on
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 r
un

ni
ng

 w
el

l. 
 

M
ul

ti 
sk

ill
s 

an
d 

ex
er

ci
se

 ta
st

er
 d

ay
 b

ou
gh

t i
n 

ex
tr

a 
dr

y 
si

de
 u

sa
ge

 fo
r 

m
on

th
.  

S
w

im
m

in
g 

cl
ub

 
ha

d 
an

nu
al

 c
lu

b 
ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

m
on

th
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 w
et

 s
id

e 
us

ag
e.

  N
ew

 d
an

ce
 

st
ud

io
 c

la
ss

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
in

cr
ea

se
 u

sa
ge

 
to

w
ar

ds
 e

nd
 o

f N
ov

em
be

r.
  H

ay
br

id
ge

 b
el

ow
 

ta
rg

et
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 lo
w

 s
ch

oo
l u

sa
ge

.  
F

ew
 

ga
ps

 in
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
ad

ve
rt

is
ed

 a
nd

 n
ew

 b
oo

ki
ng

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ta
ke

n 
fo

r 
ea

rly
 N

ov
em

be
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

st
ar

t 
of

 N
ew

 Y
ea

r.

LP
I S

C
 5

S
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t u

sa
ge

s
M

C
18

,2
13

n/
a

9,
79

3
10

,1
42

I
11

,5
56

12
,2

44
I

20
,5

05
20

,5
05

I
C

on
tin

ue
d 

gr
ow

th
 in

 n
um

be
r 

of
 u

sa
ge

s 
du

e 
to

 
P

S
P

 p
ro

je
ct

 n
ow

 u
p 

an
d 

ru
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

A
ut

um
n 

te
rm

 p
lu

s 
ru

gb
y 

ho
ck

ey
 &

 m
ul

ti 
sk

ill
s 

fe
st

iv
al

s

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

N
I 1

57
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f m
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

M
C

95
.3

5
1

75
.0

0
75

.0
0

W
75

.0
0

75
.0

0
I

75
.0

0
75

.0
0

M
aj

or
 1

/1
 =

 1
00

%
 (

N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
 is

 6
0%

).
 

O
nl

y 
on

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 th
is

 
ca

te
go

ry
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 a

 p
av

em
en

t c
ro

ss
 o

ve
r 

in
 

H
ou

nd
sf

ie
ld

 la
ne

N
I 1

57
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f m
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

92
.4

2
1

80
.0

0
71

.0
0

W
80

.0
0

71
.0

0
I

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

M
in

or
 1

3/
18

 =
 7

2%
 (

N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
 is

 6
5%

).
 

N
um

be
rs

 in
 th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y 

re
pr

es
en

t a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 S
ep

t (
15

) 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 h

as
 

al
so

 im
pr

ov
ed

 fr
om

 4
6%

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
ou

t o
f t

im
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 w
as

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 

si
ck

ne
ss

, t
he

 o
th

er
 fo

ur
 a

re
 d

ue
 to

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
/n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s.

2

Page 72



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

C
um

 o
r 

Sn
ap

?
A

ct
ua

ls
Q

ua
rt

ile
 

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
ut

tu
rn

E
st

. 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
20

07
/0

8
20

08
/0

9

N
I 1

57
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

93
.1

1
1

90
.0

0
93

.0
0

W
90

.0
0

91
.0

0
W

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

O
th

er
 3

3/
42

 =
 7

8%
 (

N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
 is

 8
0%

).
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 in

 th
is

 c
at

eg
or

y 
re

pr
es

en
t 

a 
dr

op
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 b
ot

h 
S

ep
t (

63
) 

an
d 

A
ug

 (
55

).
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 le
av

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 h
av

e 
in

flu
en

ce
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
 th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y.

 O
ne

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

w
as

 c
al

le
d 

to
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 tw
o 

re
qu

ire
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l n
ei

gh
bo

ur
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n.

E
-G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

&
 C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
S

C

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e

M
S

n/
a

n/
a

7,
49

7
n/

a
n/

a
6,

93
1

n
/a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

C
al

l v
ol

um
es

 s
ho

w
 a

 d
ow

nw
ar

d 
tr

en
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

m
on

th
ly

 a
ve

ra
ge

 to
 d

at
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
at

 th
is

 p
oi

nt
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

.
C

al
ls

 to
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 c

on
ta

ct
 c

en
tr

e 
sh

ow
 a

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 7

.5
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 m
on

th
.

C
S

C

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

M
S

n/
a

n/
a

5,
38

9
n/

a
n/

a
5,

08
1

n
/a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

C
al

ls
 to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l s

w
itc

hb
oa

rd
 s

ho
w

 a
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 5
.5

%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
 

an
d 

m
at

ch
es

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
an

nu
al

 c
al

l p
ro

fil
es

C
S

C
LP

I3
.1

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

at
 F

irs
t P

oi
nt

 o
f C

on
ta

ct
 

al
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

(p
er

ce
nt

ag
e)

M
C

94
.3

0
n/

a
85

.0
0

98
.0

0
W

85
.0

0
99

.0
0

I
90

.0
0

90
.0

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
em

ai
ns

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
s 

an
d 

is
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 ta

rg
et

.

C
S

C
LP

I3
.2

%
 o

f C
al

ls
 A

ns
w

er
ed

M
C

84
.0

0
n/

a
85

.0
0

89
.0

0
W

85
.0

0
91

.0
0

I
85

.0
0

85
.0

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
em

ai
ns

 a
bo

ve
 ta

rg
et

 th
is

 m
on

th
 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

iv
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tr
e 

du
rin

g 
th

is
 y

ea
r.

 T
hi

s 
is

 th
e 

be
st

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tr

e 
si

nc
e 

op
en

in
g

C
S

C
LP

I3
.3

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
pe

ed
 o

f A
ns

w
er

 
(s

ec
on

ds
)

M
C

36
n/

a
30

.0
0

24
.0

0
W

30
.0

0
18

.0
0

I
30

.0
0

30
.0

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
bo

ve
 ta

rg
et

 th
is

 m
on

th
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
ts

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
he

 c
on

ta
ct

 c
en

tr
e 

du
rin

g 
th

is
 

ye
ar

. T
hi

s 
is

 th
e 

be
st

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 
th

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tr
e 

si
nc

e 
op

en
in

g

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

N
I1

81
Ti

m
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
O

B
/C

T 
be

ne
fit

 n
ew

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

M
C

n/
a

n/
a

16
.0

0
16

.7
6

W
16

.0
0

16
.5

8
I

16
.0

0
16

.0
0

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

w
or

k 
on

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
w

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

st
ar

tin
g 

to
 h

av
e 

so
m

e 
im

pa
ct

 -
 n

ex
t m

on
th

s 
re

su
lt 

m
ay

 fl
uc

tu
at

e 
un

til
 w

e 
re

tu
rn

 to
 n

or
m

al
 

w
or

kl
oa

d

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 

30
 d

ay
s 

of
 r

ec
ei

pt
M

C
97

.8
3

1
98

.0
0

99
.5

3
I

98
.0

0
99

.6
0

I
98

.0
0

99
.0

0
10

0%
 o

f i
nv

oi
ce

s 
w

er
e 

pa
id

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 in

 
O

ct
ob

er

3

Page 73



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

C
um

 o
r 

Sn
ap

?
A

ct
ua

ls
Q

ua
rt

ile
 

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
ut

tu
rn

E
st

. 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
20

07
/0

8
20

08
/0

9

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

01
 

(S
S

)

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 M

on
th

ly
.  

S
ou

rc
e 

 
ne

w
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

. 
M

C
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
12

9
I

n/
a

14
5

W
n/

a 
n/

a
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
is

 m
on

th
 d

ue
 to

 
pu

bl
ic

ity
 a

bo
ut

 g
re

en
 w

as
te

 c
ha

rg
es

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

03
 

(S
S

)
N

um
be

r 
of

 c
om

pl
im

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
M

C
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
34

I
n/

a
35

W
n/

a 
n/

a
W

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 S

ta
ff 

to
 in

pu
t 

co
m

pl
im

en
ts

 o
n 

to
 th

e 
sy

st
em

!

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

&
 D

em
o

cr
at

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s

LD
 L

P
I 1

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f t

he
 E

qu
al

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nf
or

m
s

M
C

2
n/

a
2

2
S

2
2

S
2 

m
ov

in
g 

to
 3

2
S

A
 P

ee
r 

C
ha

lle
ng

e 
to

 te
st

 o
ur

 c
la

im
 th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
re

ac
he

d 
Le

ve
l 3

 h
as

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 fo

r 
A

pr
il 

20
09

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e 

to
 p

re
se

nt
 to

 C
M

T
 fo

r 
a 

fin
al

 
de

ci
si

on
 o

n 
ou

r 
re

ad
in

es
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ha

lle
ng

e.
  A

 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 m

ap
 a

ll 
th

e 
st

ag
es

 th
at

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 
re

ad
in

es
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ha

lle
ng

e.

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
n

d
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

al
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

LP
I 

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 

da
ys

 lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

9.
35

2
4.

26
5.

01
I

4.
97

6.
15

W
8.

75
10

.5
7

W
U

nf
or

tu
na

te
ly

 O
ct

ob
er

 s
ee

s 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f s
ic

kn
es

s,
 w

ith
 th

e 
ou

ttu
rn

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 r

ed
.  

F
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

se
nt

 r
ou

nd
 in

 d
ue

 c
ou

rs
e.

4

Page 74



S
tr

ee
t 

S
ce

n
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

T
ar

ge
t

50
.8

0
10

5.
00

52
.5

0
50

.1
0

46
.7

9
49

.5
7

49
.7

8

A
ct

ua
l

50
.8

0
52

.7
5

48
.8

7
55

.7
1

49
.0

3
49

.8
7

54
.8

9

T
ar

ge
t

45
.0

0
45

.0
0

45
.0

0
44

.0
2

47
.1

4
45

.0
8

42
.3

4

A
ct

ua
l

46
.2

3
49

.5
0

49
.4

9
47

.0
3

45
.7

1
48

.4
6

43
.9

8

T
ar

ge
t

na
na

na
na

na
na

A
ct

ua
l

na
na

na
na

na

T
ar

ge
t

na
na

na
2.

00
na

na

A
ct

ua
l

na
na

na
na

na

T
ar

ge
t

na
na

na
6.

00
na

na

A
ct

ua
l

na
na

na
na

na

T
ar

ge
t

na
na

na
16

.0
0

na
na

A
ct

ua
l

na
na

na
na

na

T
ar

ge
t

na
na

na
0.

00
na

na

A
ct

ua
l

na
na

na
na

na

T
ar

ge
t

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

87
.5

0
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00

T
ar

ge
t

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00

T
ar

ge
t

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00

T
ar

ge
t

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00

N
I 1

95
C

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 r

e-
us

ed
, r

ec
yc

le
d 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

ed
M

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t &

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
- 

gr
af

fit
i

M
*

S
ep

. 
Ju

l.
A

ug
.

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
F

re
q

C
  o

r 
 S

R
ef

20
08

/0
9 

M
on

th
ly

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s

D
ec

. 
Ja

n.
 

F
eb

.
M

ar
. 

O
ct

. 
N

ov
. 

Ju
n.

A
pr

. 
M

ay
.

CC C C

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d
M

N
I 1

95
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tr
ee

t &
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

- 
de

tr
itu

s
M

*

N
I 1

95
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tr
ee

t &
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

-li
tte

r
M

*

N
I 1

92

N
I 1

95
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tr
ee

t &
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

- 
fly

 p
os

tin
g

M
*

C

N
I 1

96
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tr
ee

t a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
 -

 fl
y 

tip
pi

ng
M

C

LP
I d

ep
ot

 
%

ag
e 

of
 r

ep
or

te
d 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s

M
C

LP
I d

ep
ot

 
%

ag
e 

of
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
re

m
ov

ed
 w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 le
ga

l 
en

tit
le

m
en

t
M

C

LP
I D

ep
ot

%
 a

ni
m

al
/d

eb
ris

 c
le

ar
ed

 w
ith

in
 

tim
es

ca
le

s
M

C

LP
I D

ep
ot

%
 o

f f
ly

tip
s 

de
al

t w
ith

 in
 r

es
po

ns
e 

tim
e

M
C

Page 75



T
ar

ge
t

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

11
6

A
ct

ua
l

10
4

12
3

67
98

93
91

96

T
ar

ge
t

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

50
50

A
ct

ua
l

35
28

18
18

17
21

15

T
ar

ge
t

30
30

30
30

30
30

30

A
ct

ua
l

21
20

24
30

44
39

47

T
ar

ge
t

88
89

86
89

89
86

89

A
ct

ua
l

89
92

10
1

98
10

1
93

58

T
ar

ge
t

5
5

5
5

5
5

5

A
ct

ua
l

3
3

2
7

4
5

2

T
ar

ge
t

64
65

62
65

65
62

65

A
ct

ua
l

49
37

64
65

56
61

69

T
ar

ge
t

60
53

0
50

0
80

0
12

,0
00

60
0

60
0

A
ct

ua
l

66
39

0
52

3
2,

36
5

12
,7

68
62

5
62

5

T
ar

ge
t

53
,6

01
53

,8
99

53
,9

93
62

33
9

58
18

4
57

92
7

55
21

7.
00

A
ct

ua
l

53
,9

64
54

,5
80

55
,4

01
57

39
1

45
61

6
55

69
4

57
41

0.
00

T
ar

ge
t

1,
63

6
16

54
.0

0
16

81
.0

0
17

63
.0

0
17

63
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

1,
85

4
1,

90
1

1,
66

3
17

92
.0

0
13

34
.0

0
18

18
.0

0
21

02
.0

0

LP
I

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

M
C

LP
I

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

M
C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

CC

S
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t u

sa
ge

s
M

C

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

MM

S
po

rt
s 

C
en

tr
es

 U
sa

ge

LP
I D

ep
ot

LP
I 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
af

et
y

LP
I  

LP
I 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
af

et
y

LP
I 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

LP
I

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
M M

C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
M

C

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

e 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

CC

Page 76



P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t

T
ar

ge
t

75
.0

0
75

.0
0

75
.0

0
75

.0
0

75
.0

0
75

.0
0

75
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
80

.0
0

50
.0

0
66

.0
0

10
0.

00
66

.0
0

10
0.

00

2
4

1
2

1
2

1

2
5

2
3

1
3

1

T
ar

ge
t

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

67
.0

0
88

.0
0

85
.0

0
58

.0
0

10
0.

00
46

.0
0

72
.0

0

10
15

11
11

6
7

13

15
17

13
19

6
15

18

T
ar

ge
t

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

95
.0

0
96

.0
0

90
.0

0
88

.0
0

93
.0

0
88

.0
0

78
.0

0

75
81

73
64

51
56

33

79
84

81
72

55
63

42

E
-g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

&
 C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

9,
68

5
7,

57
6

6,
34

1
7,

21
5

6,
27

5
7,

49
7

6,
93

1

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

6,
24

3
5,

62
9

5,
41

2
5,

65
7

4,
84

2
5,

38
9

5,
08

1

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

98
.0

0
98

.6
0

98
.9

0
99

.0
0

98
.7

0
98

.4
0

99
.0

0

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

78
.0

0
77

.0
0

87
.0

0
83

.0
0

94
.9

0
88

.7
0

91
.0

0

T
ar

ge
t

30
.0

0
30

.0
0

30
.0

0
30

.0
0

30
.0

0
30

.0
0

30
.0

0

C

M
C

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
nu

m
er

at
or

de
no

m
in

at
or

C
S

C

C
S

C

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.3
A

ve
ra

ge
 S

pe
ed

 o
f A

ns
w

er
 (

se
co

nd
s)

C

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.2
%

 o
f C

al
ls

 A
ns

w
er

ed
M

C

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.1
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
at

 F
irs

t P
oi

nt
 o

f C
on

ta
ct

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 (
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

)

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

M
S

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M

N
I1

57

N
I1

57

N
I1

57

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
 

C
en

tr
e

M
S

M
C

M

Page 77



A
ct

ua
l

34
.0

0
36

.0
0

26
.0

0
28

.0
0

22
.0

0
24

.0
0

18
.0

0

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

16
.0

0
16

.0
0

16
.0

0
16

.0
0

16
.0

0
16

.0
0

16
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

15
.5

1
16

.2
7

16
.4

2
16

.9
1

17
.5

3
18

.5
2

16
.5

8

T
ar

ge
t

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

99
.8

5
99

.6
8

99
.3

0
99

.1
8

99
.5

5
99

.6
6

10
0.

00

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

23
17

18
39

22
10

16

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

9
5

4
8.

00
3

5
1

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

&
 D

em
o

cr
at

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

A
ct

ua
l

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

2.
00

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 a
n

d
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

al
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

T
ar

ge
t

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

A
ct

ua
l

0.
72

0.
50

0.
62

1.
13

1.
01

0.
99

1.
15

N
I 1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T

 b
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.3
A

ve
ra

ge
 S

pe
ed

 o
f A

ns
w

er
 (

se
co

nd
s)

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

LP
I  

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

LD
 L

P
I

T
he

 le
ve

l o
f t

he
 E

qu
al

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nf
or

m
s.

M
C

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

03
N

um
be

r 
of

 c
om

pl
im

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
(C

ou
nc

il 
w

id
e)

 
M

C

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

01

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 M

on
th

ly
.  

S
ou

rc
e 

 
ne

w
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

. 
M

CC C
MM

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

on
 ti

m
e

M
C

Page 78



Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
S

ic
kn

es
s 

F
ig

u
re

s 
fo

r 
20

08
/2

00
9 

b
y 

S
er

vi
ce

Tota
l F

TE @
 M

ay
 08

Act
ual 

no
of e

m
plo

ye
es

- 

August

SERVIC
E

Tota
l S

ick
nes

sday
sApril

 

08
 &

 o
n

Day
s p

er
FTE - 

Yea
r t

o D
at

e

Pro
jec

te
d

-per
FTE

Sick
nes

s T
ar

get
 20

00
8/0

9 Apr-0
8

May
-0

8

Ju
n-0

8

Ju
l-0

8

Aug-0
8

Sep
-0

8

Oct
-0

8

Nov-
08

Dec
-0

8

Ja
n-0

9

Feb
-0

9

Mar
-0

9

28
.0

0
L

eg
al

 &
 D

em
o

cr
at

ic
47

.0
0

1.
68

2.
88

5.
5

29
.9

5
28

.0
0

28
.0

0
28

.0
0

28
.0

0
28

.0
0

28
.0

0
29

.9
5

29
.9

5
29

.9
5

29
.9

5
29

.9
5

3.
00

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

47
.0

0
1.

68
4.

00
13

.0
0

0.
00

3.
00

5.
00

5.
00

17
.0

0
0.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
13

0.
46

0.
00

0.
11

0.
18

0.
18

0.
61

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
.0

0
C

E
O

 &
 P

o
lic

y
10

3.
50

7.
39

12
.6

7
6.

0
13

.1
7

14
.0

0
14

.0
0

14
.0

0
14

.0
0

14
.0

0
14

.0
0

13
.1

7
13

.1
7

13
.1

7
13

.1
7

13
.1

7
3.

00
S

ho
rt

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
up

 to
 2

8 
da

ys
45

.5
0

3.
25

2.
00

0.
00

3.
00

5.
00

25
.0

0
7.

00
3.

50
0.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

58
.0

0
4.

14
22

.0
0

16
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

.0
0

0.
00

1.
82

1.
14

0.
21

0.
36

1.
79

1.
93

0.
25

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
.0

0
E

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
&

 C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
20

8.
00

6.
71

11
.5

0
5.

00
31

.0
1

31
.0

0
31

.0
0

31
.0

0
31

.0
0

31
.0

0
31

.0
0

31
.0

1
31

.0
1

31
.0

1
31

.0
1

31
.0

1
3.

00
S

ho
rt

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
up

 to
 2

8 
da

ys
10

9.
00

3.
52

32
.0

0
11

.5
0

2.
00

38
.0

0
3.

00
5.

50
17

.0
0

1.
00

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
29

 d
ay

s+
99

.0
0

3.
19

14
.0

0
3.

00
0.

00
0.

00
38

.0
0

36
.0

0
8.

00
  

1.
48

0.
47

0.
06

1.
23

1.
32

1.
34

0.
81

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

#V
A

LU
E

!
41

.0
0

F
in

an
ce

 
22

5.
00

5.
49

9.
41

9.
0

43
.3

2
41

.0
0

41
.0

0
41

.0
0

41
.0

0
41

.0
0

41
.0

0
43

.3
2

43
.3

2
43

.3
2

43
.3

2
43

.3
2

1.
00

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

11
4.

50
2.

79
39

.5
0

3.
00

19
.0

0
24

.0
0

4.
00

22
.0

0
3.

00
2.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

11
0.

50
2.

70
11

.0
0

19
.5

0
10

.5
0

11
.5

0
22

.5
0

11
.0

0
24

.5
0

1.
17

0.
55

0.
72

0.
87

0.
65

0.
80

0.
67

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8.
00

H
R

O
D

8.
00

1.
00

1.
71

4.
25

8.
83

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
00

8.
83

8.
83

8.
83

8.
83

8.
83

1.
00

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

8.
00

1.
00

1.
00

3.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2.
00

1.
00

0.
00

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
29

 d
ay

s+
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

11
0.

38
0.

13
0.

00
0.

00
0.

25
0.

13
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
61

.0
0

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

29
2.

50
4.

80
8.

22
7.

25
63

.6
8

61
.0

0
61

.0
0

61
.0

0
61

.0
0

61
.0

0
61

.0
0

63
.6

8
63

.6
8

63
.6

8
63

.6
8

63
.6

8
13

.0
0

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

up
 to

 2
8 

da
ys

17
9.

50
2.

94
34

.5
0

7.
00

3.
00

49
.5

0
27

.0
0

9.
50

49
.0

0
2.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

11
3.

00
1.

85
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
33

.0
0

40
.0

0
40

.0
0

0.
54

0.
11

0.
05

0.
81

0.
98

0.
81

1.
46

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
8.

00
S

tr
ee

t 
S

ce
n

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
12

81
.0

0
7.

63
13

.0
7

11
.0

16
7.

70
16

8.
00

16
8.

00
16

8.
00

16
8.

00
16

8.
00

16
8.

00
16

7.
00

16
7.

70
16

7.
70

16
7.

70
16

7.
70

33
.0

0
S

ho
rt

 te
rm

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
up

 to
 2

8 
da

ys
58

6.
00

3.
49

65
.0

0
67

.0
0

82
.0

0
82

.5
0

55
.0

0
11

1.
50

12
3.

00
7.

00
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 A

bs
en

ce
s 

29
 d

ay
s+

69
5.

00
4.

14
40

.0
0

48
.0

0
98

.0
0

17
4.

00
14

1.
00

78
.0

0
11

6.
00

0.
63

0.
68

1.
07

1.
53

1.
17

1.
13

1.
42

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

T
ot

al
 S

ho
rt

 T
er

m
 A

bs
en

ce
 Y

T
D

 
10

89
.5

0
17

8.
00

10
4.

50
11

0.
00

20
2.

00
11

9.
00

16
2.

50
21

3.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

35
1.

00
T

ot
al

 L
on

g 
T

er
m

 A
bs

en
ce

 Y
T

D
10

75
.5

0
87

.0
0

86
.5

0
10

8.
50

18
5.

50
23

4.
50

18
5.

00
18

8.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

T
O

T
A

L
 D

ay
s 

lo
st

 Y
T

D
21

65
.0

0
10

.5
7

8.
75

26
5.

00
19

1.
00

21
8.

50
38

7.
50

35
3.

50
34

7.
50

40
2.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

T
A

R
G

E
T

 s
ic

k 
d

ay
s 

p
er

 F
T

E
 p

er
 m

o
n

th
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

71
0.

79
0.

79
0.

78
0.

74
0.

54
0.

62
1.

10
1.

01
0.

99
1.

15
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
71

1.
42

2.
13

2.
84

3.
55

4.
26

4.
97

5.
68

6.
39

7.
18

7.
97

8.
75

0.
74

1.
29

1.
91

3.
01

4.
02

5.
01

6.
15

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8.
89

7.
79

7.
69

9.
08

9.
68

10
.0

5
10

.5
7

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
04

-0
5

30
74

.9
9

73
5.

87
87

5.
43

83
6.

52
62

7.
17

20
05

-0
6

35
70

.5
8

69
5.

38
94

9.
95

88
3.

98
10

41
.2

7
20

06
-0

7
38

06
.0

0
10

67
.0

0
95

9.
50

95
1.

00
82

8.
50

20
07

-0
8

33
48

.5
0

79
2.

00
75

9.
50

96
3.

00
83

4.
00

20
00

8-
09

21
65

.0
0

67
4.

50
10

88
.5

0
40

2.
00

0.
00

Y
ea

r
A

nn
ua

l
Q

ua
rt

er
 1

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
Q

ua
rt

er
 3

Q
ua

rt
er

 4

F
TE

 M
ar

ch
 0

8
35

7.
66

K
ey

:
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
 w

o
rs

e 
th

an
 t

ar
g

et
   

 w
o

rs
e 

th
an

 t
ar

g
et

, b
u

t 
w

it
h

in
 1

0%
   

 o
n

 o
r 

b
et

te
r 

th
an

 t
ar

g
et

F
TE

 M
ay

 0
8

35
1.

00
F

TE
 M

ar
ch

 0
9

# 
o

f 
M

o
n

th
s

7

B
V

P
I 1

2 
S

ic
k 

D
ay

s 
P

er
 F

T
E

 in
 M

o
n

th

B
V

P
I 1

2 
- 

S
ic

k 
D

ay
s 

p
er

 F
T

E
 Y

T
D

B
V

P
I 1

2 
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 O
u

tt
u

rn

T
A

R
G

E
T

 s
ic

k 
d

ay
s 

p
er

 F
T

E
 Y

T
D

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 
16TH DECEMBER 2008 

 
SIX MONTHLY REVIEW OF ESTIMATED OUTTURN  

 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Mike Webb, Portfolio Holder for 

Customer Care & Service 
Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Assistant Chief 

Executive 
Non Key Decision 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
  
1.1 To report to The Board on the Council’s performance at the mid year point 

(end September) on all performance measures published in the 2008/09 
business plans.  

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 

That The Board notes that 82% of corporately reported PIs are projected to 
meet or exceed their target (as previously reported in the Quarter 2 
integrated performance report) and that 77% of all targets set in business 
plans are expected to be met.   
 
That The Board notes the overall positions for each department on all their 
performance targets as set out at para 3.3.    
 
That The Board notes the recommendations made to Leaders’ Group about 
those performance indicators which are included in business plans but not 
regularly reported as part of the corporate PI set ( see section 3.4) and make 
recommendations if deemed appropriate. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 Each year Heads of Service include a number of performance measures and 

targets in the departmental business plans.  A subset of these targets, those 
which most closely support the corporate priorities of the Council, are 
included in the Council Plan.  This set is referred the to ‘corporately reported’ 
PI’s and it is these that are reported on each month and quarter in the 
Monthly Performance reports and Quarterly Integrated Finance & 
Performance reports which are submitted to members.  The other PI’s which 
are included in the departmental business plans are monitored within each 
Department and are discussed and managed at Departmental Management 
Team meetings (DMTs). 
 

3.2 This report provides a mid year view of our progress against all of the 
performance measures and targets that were published in the business 
plans.  The summary position analysis is shown by department in section 3.3 

Agenda Item 8

Page 83



below.  Appendix 1 contains the detailed list of targets, the mid year position 
and estimated outturn with a commentary where appropriate.  

 
3.3  

 
The departmental analysis is shown in the table below, as can be seen from 
the table performance against all targets in business plans, compares 
favourably with performance against targets for the corporately reported 
subset of indicators.  77% of all targets set in business plans are expected to 
be met, compared to 82% of targets declared in the Council Plan. 
 
 

Department 
Number / % of 
PI’s expected to 
meet target 
(green) 

 Number/ % of 
PI’s expected to 
miss  target but 
by less than 10% 

(amber) 

 Number/ % of 
PI’s expected to 
miss  target by 
more than 10% 

(red) 
Streetscene and 
Community 
 

31 (94%) 2 (6%) 1 (3%) 
Planning and 
Environment 
 

8 (100%) 0 0 
Chief Executives 
department 
 

8 (54%) 2 (13%) 5 (33%) 
Legal, Equalities 
and Democratic 
Services   
 

10 (77%) 3 (23%) 0 

Human 
Resources & 
Organisational  
Development 
 

3 (37.5%) 0 5 (62.5%) 

Financial 
Services 
 

14 (67%) 4 (19%) 3 (14%) 
E Government 
and Customer 
Services 
 

12 (100%) 0 0 

Overall Council  
 86 (77%) 11 (10%) 14 (13%) 
 

 
3.4 
 
 

Preparation of this report has highlighted that the quality of the management 
of those performance measures that are managed at DMT’s is variable and 
not, in some cases, as robust as the processes and procedures that have 
been in place for the corporately reported PI set. Issues and 
recommendations to address these are as follows: 
 

� The Corporate system, based on Excel spreadsheets, for capturing 
performance information for corporately reported Performance 

Page 84



indicators was changed last year so that it could also be used by 
Departments to record performance information on those other 
performance measures and targets in their business plans that are 
managed within the department and at DMTs.  The idea being that this 
would enable departments to have a repository of all performance 
information pertaining to the department in a single place.  Not all 
departments have taken up this option.  In some cases where 
performance information was not kept on the Excel spreadsheet it took 
some time to be delivered for use in this report, thus suggesting that it 
might not be stored appropriately.  It is therefore RECOMMENDED 
that it becomes mandatory to use the corporate system to record all 
performance information, both for corporately reported PIs and those 
reported only at DMT.     

 
� In other cases it became clear that there is scope for differing 

interpretation of those local performance measures and targets which 
are not corporately. At the moment those PI’s which are corporately 
reported are supported by a PI procedure note which sets out, 
amongst other things, the definition of the PI and the method of 
calculation.  It is RECOMMENDED that from 2009/10 onwards all 
performance measures that are included in Business Plans have a PI 
procedure note, whether they are corporately reported PI’s or not.   

  
4. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There are no financial implications 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 There are no legal implications. 
  
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
  
6.1 Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective 
  
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
•  Data quality problems  
•  Poor performance 

 
7.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  

 
•  Implementation of the Data Quality Strategy 
•   Robust follow up on performance issues, including performance clinics 

 
8 CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective 
  
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

Page 85



  
9.1 There are no implications for the Council’s Equalities and Diversity Policies. 
  
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 � There are no VFM implications   
  
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Procurement Issues None  
 Personnel Issues None  
 Governance/Performance Management –  Production of the performance 

report supports the aim of improving performance & performance 
management  

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder Act 1988 None  
 Policy  None  
 Environmental None  
  
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  
 Please include the following table and indicate ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ as appropriate.  

Delete the words in italics. 
  
 Portfolio Holder Yes(At  

Leader’s Group) 
 Chief Executive Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Services) Yes (at CMT)  
 Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 Head of Service  Yes 
 Head of Financial Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Organisational Development & HR Yes (at CMT)  
 Corporate Procurement Team Yes (at CMT)  
  
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
  

All Wards’. 
  
14. APPENDICES 
  
 Appendix 1  detailed estimated outturn information by Department  

 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
 None 
  
Contact officer 
Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881602 

Page 86



 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

St
ree

t S
ce
ne
 an

d C
om

mu
nit
y 

 Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

NI
 19

1 
Re

sid
ua

l H
ou

se
ho

ld 
wa

ste
 pe

r h
ou

se
ho

ld 
(kg

) 
59

3 
29

5.5
3 

59
1 

Cu
rre

nt 
pro

jec
tio

ns
 id

en
tify

 EO
 w
ill c

om
e i

n s
lig
htl

y b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
(lo

we
r is

 be
tte

r fo
r th

is 
ind

ica
tor

) 

NI
 19

2 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 
ho

us
eh

old
 w
as

te 
re-

us
ed

, re
cy
cle

d a
nd

 
co

mp
os

ted
 

45
.00

 
49

.46
 

42
.00

 
Cu

rre
nt 

pro
jec

tio
ns

 id
en

tify
 EO

 to
 co

me
 in

 be
low

 ta
rge

t a
t 

42
-43

%.
 Th

e 4
9.4

6%
 fig

ure
 as

 at
 Se

pte
mb

er 
wil

l 
dra

ma
tic
all
y r

ed
uc

e a
t th

e e
nd

 of
 N
ov

em
be

r d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ce

ss
ati

on
 of

 gr
ee

n w
as

te 
co

lle
cti
on

s. 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
& 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l 

cle
an

lin
es

s -
 gr

aff
iti 

5.0
0 

2.0
0* 

5.0
0 

* N
I 1

95
 is
 ba

se
d o

n a
 vi
su

al 
as

se
ss
me

nt 
an

d g
rad

ing
 of

 
the

 am
ou

nt 
of 

gra
ffit

i, l
itte

r e
tc 

pre
se

nt 
on

 a 
se

lec
tio

n o
f 

lan
d &

 hi
gh

wa
ys
.  F

rom
 th

is 
a c

alc
ula

tio
n o

f th
e 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 la

nd
 an

d h
igh

wa
ys
 ha

vin
g d

ep
os

its
 w
hic

h 
fal

l b
elo

w 
an

 ac
ce

pta
ble

 le
ve

l is
 ca

lcu
lat

ed
.  H

en
ce

 ‘lo
w 

is 
go

od
’ fo

r th
is 

ind
ica

tor
.  T

his
 is
 do

ne
 to

 na
tio

na
lly 

ag
ree

d d
efi

nit
ion

s a
nd

 ca
lcu

lat
ion

s. 
 Th

e a
ss
es

sm
en

ts 
are

 m
ad

e t
hre

e t
im

es
 a 

ye
ar,

 th
e l

ate
st 

av
ail
ab

le 
fig

ure
 is
 

fro
m 

Ju
ly 
 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
& 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l 

cle
an

lin
es

s -
litt
er 

13
.00

 
6.0

0* 
13

.00
 

As
 ab

ov
e 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
& 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l 

cle
an

lin
es

s -
 de

trit
us

 
20

.00
 

16
.00

* 
20

.00
 

As
 ab

ov
e 

Page 89



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

NI
 19

5 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
& 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l 

cle
an

lin
es

s -
 fly

 po
sti
ng

 
1.0

0 
0.0

0* 
1.0

0 
As

 ab
ov

e 

NI
 19

6  
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
an

d 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
cle

an
lin
es

s  
- fl

y t
ipp

ing
 

2 
n/a

 
3 

EO
 is
 lik

ely
 to

 be
 3 

as
 w
e h

av
e n

ot 
ha

d a
n i

nc
rea

se
 in

 
en

for
ce

me
nt,

 ye
t w

e h
av

e a
n i

nc
rea

se
 in

 fly
 tip

 re
po

rts
 

LP
I d

ep
ot 

%a
ge

 of
 re

po
rte

d 
ab

an
do

ne
d v

eh
icle

s 
inv

es
tig

ate
d w

ith
in 

24
 

ho
urs

  
95

.00
 

97
.67

 
97

.67
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 

LP
I d

ep
ot 

%a
ge

 of
 ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hic

les
 re

mo
ve

d 
wit

hin
 24

 ho
urs

 of
 le

ga
l 

en
titl
em

en
t 

95
.00

 
10

0 
10

0 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

LP
I D

ep
ot 

% 
an

im
al/

de
bri

s 
cle

are
d w

ith
in 

tim
es

ca
les

 
95

.00
 

10
0 

10
0 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 

LP
I D

ep
ot 

% 
of 

fly
tip

s d
ea

lt w
ith

 
in 

res
po

ns
e t

im
e 

95
.00

 
10

0 
10

0 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

LP
I  

Mi
ss
ed

 ho
us

eh
old

 
wa

ste
 co

lle
cti
on

s 
1,4

00
 

57
5 

11
50

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

LP
I  

Mi
ss
ed

 re
cy
clin

g 
co

lle
cti

on
s 

30
0 

13
8 

25
0 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
LP

I 
Mi

ss
ed

 co
mm

erc
ial
 

co
lle
cti

on
s 

48
 

33
 

43
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 

Page 90



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
LP

I 
% 

EC
N 

ap
pe

als
 

res
po

nd
ed

 to
 w
ith

in 
10

 
da

ys
 

95
% 

97
.45

 
97

.06
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 NW

BC
U 
1 #

 
 

 Do
me

sti
c B

ug
lar

ies
 

36
0 

17
6 

33
1 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 NW

BC
U 
2 #

 
 

 Vio
len

t C
rim

e 
 

10
56

 
55

8 
11

28
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e s
lig
htl

y w
ors

e t
ha

n t
arg

et 
 NW

BC
U 
3 #

 
 

 Ro
bb

eri
es

 
60

 
25

 
45

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

 NW
BC

U4
 # 

 Ve
hic

le 
Cr

im
e 

76
8 

34
9 

69
4 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
LP

I S
C1

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
att

ed
an

ce
s 

at 
Ar
ts 

Ev
en

ts 
25

,25
3 

16
,73

7 
25

,25
3 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

I S
C2

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
pe

op
le 

att
en

din
g t

he
 an

nu
al 

bo
nfi

re.
 

11
,33

9 
n/a

 
11

,33
9 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

I S
C4

 
 Sp

ort
s C

en
tre

 U
sa

ge
 

67
2,4

20
 

32
2,6

46
 

67
2,4

20
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

I S
C5

 
 Sp

ort
s D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Us

ag
e 

20
,50

5 
10

,14
2 

20
,50

5 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 LP
I L

L1
 

 Lif
e l

ine
 un

its
 in

 us
e 

55
6 

53
2 

55
6 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 

Page 91



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
 NI

13
9 

Th
e e

xte
nt 

to 
wh

ich
 

old
er 

pe
op

le 
rec

eiv
e 

su
pp

ort
 th

ey
 ne

ed
 to

 
live

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly
. 

 
TB

C 
 

 
Pla

ce
 su

rve
y, 

fig
ure

 w
ill b

e a
va

ila
ble

 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
09

 

 LP
I C

S 1
a 

CC
TV

 in
cid

en
ts 

rep
ort

ed
 - C

rim
e 

2,9
83

 
17

06
 

3,5
00

 
Fig

ure
 ab

ov
e t

arg
et,

 du
e t

o n
ew

 ca
me

ra 
sc
he

me
s b

ein
g 

ins
tal

led
 in

 St
ou

rpo
rt a

nd
 Be

wd
ley

. 
 LP

I C
S1

b 
CC

TV
 in

cid
en

ts 
Ini

tia
ted

 by
 C
CT

V 
 

10
47

 
49

5 
1,0

47
 

Th
e p

os
itio

n a
t E

nd
 Se

pt 
is 
jus

t b
elo

w 
tar

ge
t o

f 5
22

, 
ho

we
ve

r s
ho

uld
 m

ee
t e

sti
ma

ted
 ou

ttu
rn 

fol
low

ing
 th

e 
int

rod
uc

tio
n o

f m
on

ito
rin

g p
att

ern
s. 

 LP
I C

S2
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

loc
all
y 

de
live

red
 di

ve
rsi

on
ary

 
se

ss
ion

s. 
 

 15
7 

10
5 

17
0 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 LP

I C
S3

 
Nu

mb
ers

 of
 us

ers
 

att
en

din
g d

ive
rsi

on
ary

 
ac

tiv
itie

s. 
 

43
6 

22
7 

43
6 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

I S
D1

 
 SD

 - Q
ua

lity
 As

su
rre

d 
Clu

bs
 

18
 

17
 

18
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

I S
D2

 
 SD

  - 
Clu

bs
 w
ork

ing
 to

 
qu

ali
ty 

as
su

ran
ce

 
7 

7 
7 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

I S
D3

 
 SD

 – 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
SD

 
se

ss
ion

s d
eli
ve

red
 

 
1,1

00
 

51
1 

1,1
00

 
Th

e m
ajo

rity
 of

 th
e S

D 
se

ss
ion

s w
ill b

e d
eli
ve

red
 

be
tw
ee

n S
ep

t a
nd

 M
arc

h i
n l

ine
 w
ith

 Sp
ort

s S
ea

so
ns

.  
Th

e t
arg

et 
wil

l b
e m

et 
an

d m
ore

 th
an

 lik
ely

 ex
ce

ed
ed

 

Page 92



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
 LP

I S
D4

 
 SD

 – 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
us

ers
 

att
en

din
g S

D 
se

ss
ion

s 
8,4

00
 

4,7
30

 
8,4

00
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 LP

 11
9e

 
 Sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 Pa

rks
 

an
d O

pe
n S

pa
ce

s 
78

% 
78

% 
78

% 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 LP
I C

E2
 

Ar
trix

 av
era

ge
 %

 
up

da
te 

of 
ac

tiv
itie

s  
60

% 
87

% 
87

% 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

 LP
I S

C6
 

Fe
ar 

of 
Cr

im
e %

 
(ni

gh
ttim

e) 
– 

Br
om

sg
rov

e G
en

era
l 

CD
RP

 O
utt

urn
 

(an
nu

al)
 

64
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Fig
ure

s a
va

ila
ble

 sh
ort

ly 
(fro

m 
W
es

t M
erc

ia 
Cr

im
e &

 
Sa

fet
y s

urv
ey

) 

  Pla
nn
ing

 &
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
 

 Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
NI

 15
7 

(B
VP

I 
10

9a
) 

 Ti
me

 ta
ke

n t
o d

ete
rm

ine
 

‘M
ajo

r’ p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli
cia

tio
ns

. 
75

% 
75

.00
 

75
.00

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

NI
 15

7 
(B

VP
I 

10
9b

) 
Tim

e t
ak

en
 to

 de
ter

mi
ne

 
‘M

ino
r’ p

lan
nin

g 
ap

pli
cia

tio
ns

. 
80

% 
71

.00
 

80
.00

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 su
rro

un
din

g t
he

 de
ter

mi
na

tio
n o

f “m
ino

r” 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 ha
s b

ee
n a

ffe
cte

d b
y a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

lon
g 

pe
rio

ds
 of

 si
ck

ne
ss
 in

 co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 of
fic
ers

 le
av

ing
 

Page 93



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
the

 au
tho

rity
. T

ha
t h

as
 pu

t g
rea

ter
 pr

es
su

re 
on

 th
e 

rem
ain

ing
 of

fic
ers

 to
 ta

ke
 ov

er 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 th
at 

we
re 

no
t 

ori
gin

all
y a

llo
ca

ted
 to

 th
em

. In
 or

de
r to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 th

is 
ca

teg
ory

 a 
hig

hli
gh

t re
po

rt w
ill b

e 
iss

ue
d t

o e
na

ble
 th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

nin
g M

an
ag

ers
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

mo
re 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

 th
e m

ino
r a

pp
lica

tio
ns

. 
  

NI
 15

7  
(B

VP
I 

10
9c

) 
Tim

e t
ak

en
 to

 de
ter

mi
ne

 
‘O
the

r’ p
lan

nin
g 

ap
pli
ca

tio
ns

. 
90

% 
93

.00
 

90
.00

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

NI
 15

5 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

me
s d

eli
ve

red
 

80
 

74
 

16
0 

Ta
rge

t w
ill b

e s
ign

ific
an

tly
 ex

ce
ed

ed
 

NI
 15

6 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ho

us
eh

old
s 

oc
up

yin
g t

em
po

rar
y 

ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 
34

 
10

 
24

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

LP
I 

Av
era

ge
 tim

e (
we

ek
s) 

fro
m 

ref
err

al 
to 

co
mp

let
ion

 fo
r 

ca
teg

ory
  1

 D
FG

s  
n/a

 
38

 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 m
id 

ye
ar,

 ta
rge

ts 
wil

l b
e s

et 
for

 ne
xt 

ye
ar 

ba
se

d o
n t

his
 ye

ars
’ p

erf
orm

an
ce

 

LP
I 

Av
era

ge
 tim

e (
we

ek
s) 

fro
m 

ref
err

al 
to 

co
mp

let
ion

 fo
r 

ca
teg

ory
  2

 D
FG

s 
n/a

 
51

 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 m
id 

ye
ar,

 ta
rge

ts 
wil

l b
e s

et 
for

 ne
xt 

ye
ar 

ba
se

d o
n t

his
 ye

ars
’ p

erf
orm

an
ce

 

LP
I 

Av
era

ge
 tim

e (
we

ek
s) 

fro
m 

ref
err

al 
to 

co
mp

let
ion

 fo
r 

ca
teg

ory
  3

 D
FG

s 
n/a

 
44

 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 m
id 

ye
ar,

 ta
rge

ts 
wil

l b
e s

et 
for

 ne
xt 

ye
ar 

ba
se

d o
n t

his
 ye

ars
’ p

erf
orm

an
ce

 

Page 94



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

LP
I 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 D

FG
 bu

dg
et 

all
oc

ate
d t

o a
pp

rov
ed

 
sc
he

me
s 

n/a
 

37
.50

 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 m
id 

ye
ar,

 ta
rge

ts 
wil

l b
e s

et 
for

 ne
xt 

ye
ar 

ba
se

d o
n t

his
 ye

ars
’ p

erf
orm

an
ce

 

LP
I  

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 D

FG
 bu

dg
et 

sp
en

t  
n/a

 
25

.80
 

n/a
 

Ne
w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 m
id 

ye
ar,

 ta
rge

ts 
wil

l b
e s

et 
for

 ne
xt 

ye
ar 

ba
se

d o
n t

his
 ye

ars
’ p

erf
orm

an
ce

 

LP
I 

% 
of 

res
ide

nts
 sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 
ret

ail
 an

d l
eis

ure
 fa

cili
tie

s 
off

ere
d i

n t
he

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e 
n/a

 
21

% 
21

% 
Fig

ure
s f

rom
 re

sid
en

ts 
su

rve
y, 

3%
 ve

ry 
sa

tis
fie

d, 
18

% 
fai

rly
 sa

tis
fie

d 

LP
I  

% 
of 

res
ide

nts
 sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 
tra

ns
po

rt l
ink

s t
o a

nd
 fro

m 
tow

n c
en

tre
 

n/a
 

25
% 

25
% 

Fig
ure

s f
rom

 re
sid

en
ts 

su
rve

y, 
5%

 ve
ry 

sa
tis
fie

d, 
20

% 
fai

rly
 sa

tis
fie

d 

LP
I 

Re
gis

tra
tio

n o
f p

lan
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
n. 

80
 

96
 

96
 

Ex
ce

lle
nt 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
  d

eli
ve

red
 at

 a 
tim

e w
he

n 
int

rod
uc

ing
 tw

o n
ew

 IT
 sy

ste
ms

 (in
clu

din
g r

un
nin

g 
pa

ral
lel
 sy

ste
ms

) a
nd

 th
e e

xte
nt 

of 
tim

e b
ein

g g
ive

n t
o 

sta
ff t

rai
nin

g 
LP

I 
Pa

ym
en

t o
f in

vo
ice

s. 
97

 
10

0 
10

0 
Ex

ce
lle
nt 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 fo

llo
win

g i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 ne

w 
sy
ste

ms
 to

 ca
rry

 ou
t d

ep
art

me
nta

l in
vo

icin
g. 

LP
I 

Pla
nn

ing
 hi

sto
rie

s-L
ett

er 
res

po
ns

e t
im

es
. 

98
 

10
0 

99
 

Ex
ce

lle
nt 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 du

rin
g a

 pe
rio

d o
f tr

ain
ing

 a 
ne

w 
em

plo
ye

e. 
    Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
s D

ep
art
me

nt 
  

 

Page 95



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

 Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
CC

PP
01

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
co

mp
lai
nts

 
rec

eiv
ed

 
n/a

 
12

9 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 th
is 
ye

ar,
 no

 ta
rge

t s
et.

  T
arg

et 
for

 
20

09
/10

 w
ill b

e s
et 

ba
se

d o
n e

xp
eri

en
ce

 th
is 
ye

ar 
CC

PP
02

 
% 

of 
PA

CT
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

att
en

de
d b

y S
MT

 
me

mb
ers

 
85

.00
 

86
.00

 
85

.00
 

Th
e t

arg
et 

wa
s m

iss
ed

 in
 th

e f
irs

t q
ua

rte
r, b

ut 
co

rre
cti
ve

 
ac

tio
n w

as
 ta

ke
n d

uri
ng

 th
e s

ec
on

d q
ua

rte
r, s

o w
e a

re 
ba

ck
 on

 ta
rge

t. 
CC

PP
03

  
Nu

mb
er 

of 
co

mp
lim

en
ts 

rec
eiv

ed
 

n/a
 

34
 

n/a
 

Ne
w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 th
is 
ye

ar.
  C

on
sid

era
tio

n w
ill b

e g
ive

n 
as

 to
 w
he

the
r th

is 
wil

l h
av

e a
 ta

rge
t n

ex
t y

ea
r, o

r w
he

the
r 

it r
em

ain
s a

n ‘
ac

tiv
ity
 m

ea
su

re’
 

CC
PP

04
 

% 
of 

pre
ss

 ar
tic

les
 

wh
ich

 en
ha

nc
e o

ur 
rep

uta
tio

n (
Mo

nth
ly 
-

DM
T L

PI)
. 

 
75

% 
69

.91
 

72
% 

Th
e C

CP
P t

ea
m 

are
 is
su

ing
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

nu
mb

er 
of 

pre
ss
 re

lea
se

s (
4/5

 a 
we

ek
), b

ut 
iss

ue
s l
ike

 gr
ee

n w
as

te,
 

ca
r p

ark
ing

 an
d t

he
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
e a

re 
ca

us
ing

 ne
ga

tiv
e 

he
ad

lin
es

 th
at 

are
 di

ffic
ult

 fo
r th

e t
ea

m 
to 

co
mb

at.
  T

he
re 

is 
ha

rdl
y a

ny
 re

ac
tiv
e c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s n

ow
, s

o w
e 

ma
na

gin
g o

ur 
rep

uta
tio

n a
s m

uc
h a

s p
os

sib
le.

 
 

CC
PP

05
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

pre
ss
 

art
icle

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
oth

er 
so

urc
es

 
n/a

 
14

7 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 th
is 
ye

ar,
 no

 ta
rge

t s
et.

  T
arg

et 
for

 
20

09
/10

 w
ill b

e s
et 

ba
se

d o
n e

xp
eri

en
ce

 th
is 
ye

ar 
CC

PP
06

 
% 

of 
Me

mb
ers

 
res

po
nd

ing
 ab

ou
t th

e 
co

nte
nt/

rel
ev

an
ce

us
efu

lne
ss
 of

 th
e M

em
be

r 
Bu

lle
tin

 (A
nn

ua
l –

 
Me

mb
er 

Su
rve

y).
 

 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Fig
ure

 w
ill b

e o
bta

ine
d f

rom
 th

e m
em

be
r s

urv
ey

 w
he

n 
ca

pa
cit
y a

llo
ws

 

Page 96



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
CC

PP
07

 
% 

of 
Me

mb
ers

 
res

po
nd

ing
 ab

ou
t 

rel
ev

an
ce

/us
efu

lne
ss
 

wh
o e

xp
res

se
d 

po
sit
ive

 vi
ew

s (
An

nu
al 

– M
em

be
r S

urv
ey

). 

n/a
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Fig
ure

 w
ill b

e o
bta

ine
d f

rom
 th

e m
em

be
r s

urv
ey

 w
he

n 
ca

pa
cit
y a

llo
ws

 

CC
PP

08
 

Is 
the

 C
on

ne
ct 

Ne
ws

let
ter

 a 
us

efu
l 

wa
y o

f k
ee

pin
g y

ou
 up

 
to 

da
te 

wit
h w

ha
t is

 
go

ing
 on

? (
An

nu
al 

– 
Em

plo
ye

e S
urv

ey
) 

85
% 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Fig
ure

 w
ill b

e o
bta

ine
d f

rom
 th

e s
taf

f s
urv

ey
  

CC
PP

09
 U

se
ful

ne
ss

 of
 To

ge
the

r 
Br

om
sg

rov
e (

An
nu

al 
 

So
urc

e –
 C

us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l). 

 
70

% 
61

% 
61

% 
Th

e t
arg

et 
wa

s m
iss

ed
, b

ut 
61

% 
of 

res
ide

nts
 su

rve
ye

d 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e C

us
tom

er 
Pa

ne
l fo

un
d T

og
eth

er 
Br

om
sg

rov
e 

“ve
ry 

us
efu

l” o
r “u

se
ful

”, u
p f

rom
 41

% 
the

 pr
ev

iou
s y

ea
r.  

W
e w

ou
ld 

ex
pe

ct 
thi

s f
igu

re 
to 

inc
rea

se
 an

y n
ex

t y
ea

r, a
s 

res
ide

nts
 be

co
me

 m
ore

 fa
mi

lia
r w

ith
 th

e m
ag

az
ine

. 
CC

PP
10

 %
 of

 re
po

rts
 to

 LS
P 5

 
wo

rki
ng

 da
ys
 be

for
e 

the
 m

ee
tin

g (
Mo

nth
ly)

. 
 

10
0%

 
50

% 
80

% 
Th

e L
SP

 no
w 
ha

s a
 cl
ea

r p
erf

orm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fra

me
wo

rk,
 bu

t p
rod

uc
ing

 pa
pe

rs 
to 

tim
e i

s p
rov

ing
 

dif
fic
ult

 du
e t

o d
ela

ys
 in

 th
e C

CP
P r

ec
eiv

ing
 pa

pe
rs 

fro
m 

ou
r p

art
ne

rs.
  T

he
 is
su

e h
as

 be
en

 ra
ise

d a
t th

e B
oa

rd.
 

CC
PP

11
 %

 of
 LS

P P
I’s
 w
he

re 
EO

 is
 on

 ta
rge

t (s
ix 

mo
nth

ly)
 So

urc
e –

 
fro

m 
KP

I re
po

rt. 
85

% 
90

% 
85

% 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

Page 97



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
CC

PP
12

 %
 of

 ac
tio

ns
 on

 th
e 

LS
P C

om
mu

nit
y 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n t
ha

t 
are

 gr
ee

n (
bi-

mo
nth

ly)
. 

 
85

% 
88

% 
85

% 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

CC
PP

13
 P

erc
en

tag
e o

f 
co

mp
lai
nts

 re
so

lve
d 

wit
hin

 10
 da

ys
   

   
66

.67
 

n/a
 

Ne
w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 th
is 
ye

ar,
 no

 ta
rge

t s
et.

  T
arg

et 
for

 
20

09
/10

 w
ill b

e s
et 

ba
se

d o
n e

xp
eri

en
ce

 th
is 
ye

ar 
CC

PP
14

 %
 of

 pr
op

os
ers

 to
 

Br
igh

t Id
ea

s w
ho

 
rec

eiv
e f

ee
db

ac
k 

 
10

0%
 

10
0.0

0 
10

0.0
0 

All
 pr

op
os

ers
 re

ce
ive

d f
ee

db
ac

k. 

CC
PP

15
 %

 of
 C

orp
ora

tel
y 

Re
po

rte
d P

I’s
 w
he

re 
EO

 is
 pr

oje
cte

d t
o 

me
et 

tar
ge

t (M
on

thl
y) 

 
70

% 
85

.00
 

80
.00

 
Ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

xc
ee

d t
arg

et 

CC
PP

16
  %

 of
 re

po
rts

 on
 

Ca
bin

et 
Fo

rw
ard

 Pl
an

 
iss

ue
d o

n t
im

e  
90

% 
88

.00
 

90
.00

 
So

me
 m

ino
r s

lip
pa

ge
. 

CC
PP

17
 %

 of
 re

po
rts

 to
 G

OW
M 

8 c
ale

nd
ar 

da
ys
 be

for
e 

the
 m

ee
tin

g 
95

% 
10

0.0
0 

10
0.0

0 
 Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

 
CC

PP
18

 %
 of

 re
po

rts
 on

 PM
B 

W
ork

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
Iss

ue
d o

n T
im

e. 
85

% 
96

.00
 

90
.00

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

 

Page 98



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
CC

PP
19

 N
um

be
r o

f c
ore

 br
ief

s 
se

nt 
ou

t b
y 9

 a.
m.

 th
e 

da
y a

fte
r S

tra
teg

ic 
CM

T  
95

% 
60

% 
80

% 
Th

e t
arg

et 
is 
to 

pu
t o

ut 
Co

re 
Br

ief
 by

 9a
m 

on
 th

e 
W
ed

ne
sd

ay
 af

ter
 C
MT

.  T
his

 ha
s b

ee
n m

iss
ed

, b
ut 

no
rm

all
y o

nly
 by

 le
ss
 th

an
 an

 ho
ur.

 
CC

PP
20

 %
 of

 ac
tio

ns
 on

 th
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n t
ha

t 
are

 gr
ee

n/o
n t

arg
et.

  
Mo

nth
ly.
  

90
% 

73
.10

 
80

% 
Ta

rge
t w

ill b
e m

iss
ed

 du
e t

o s
lip
pa

ge
 of

 so
me

 m
ile
sto

ne
s 

on
 m

ajo
r s

ch
em

es
, e

.g.
 si
ng

le 
sta

tus
, to

wn
 ce

ntr
e, 

rai
lwa

y s
tat

ion
 in

to 
ne

xt 
ye

ar.
   

CC
PP

21
 %

 R
es

po
ns

e r
ate

 fo
r 

cu
sto

me
r p

an
el 

su
rve

ys
. S

ix 
mo

nth
ly.
 

45
% 

41
% 

44
% 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 no
 co

ntr
ol 

ov
er 

ho
w 
ma

ny
 re

sp
on

de
nts

 
ret

urn
 th

eir
 su

rve
ys
, b

ut 
the

 su
bje

ct 
ma

tte
r o

f th
e s

urv
ey

 
an

d t
he

 si
ze

 of
 th

e s
am

ple
 su

rve
ye

d c
an

 he
lp 

inc
rea

se
 

the
 re

sp
on

se
 ra

te.
 

CC
PP

22
 %

 Te
am

 R
es

po
ns

e 
rat

e f
or 

Em
plo

ye
e 

Su
rve

y (
An

nu
al)

 
10

0%
 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Fig
ure

s n
ot 

av
ail
ab

le 
ye

t 
CC

PP
23

 %
 R
es

po
ns

e r
ate

 fo
r 

Me
mb

er 
su

rve
ys
. S

ix 
mo

nth
ly.
 

60
% 

n/a
 

n/a
 

Fig
ure

s n
ot 

av
ail
ab

le 
ye

t 
CC

PP
24

 %
 of

 re
d/a

mb
er 

ite
ms

 
on

 Te
am

 ris
k r

eg
ist

er 
(lo

w 
is 

go
od

). Q
ua

rte
rly

 
5%

 
22

.2 
20

% 
As

 at
 th

e e
nd

 of
 Se

pte
mb

er 
8 o

ut 
of 

36
 ac

tio
ns

 w
ere

 re
d. 

 
A n

um
be

r o
f a

cti
on

s h
av

e b
ee

n s
us

pe
nd

ed
 du

e t
o l

ac
k o

f 
ca

pa
cit
y a

nd
 w
ill t

he
ref

ore
 re

ma
in 

red
,  t

he
 ot

he
r re

d 
ou

ttu
rns

 ar
e d

ue
 to

 sl
ipp

ag
e a

nd
 re

du
cti
on

s i
n c

ap
ac

ity
.- 

ma
kin

g a
 20

% 
ou

ttu
rn 

fig
ure

 m
ore

 lik
ely

 th
is 
ye

ar 
   

Page 99



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

      Le
ga
l, E

qu
ali
tie
s a
nd
 D
em

oc
rat
ic 
Se
rvi
ce
s  
 

 Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
LD

 LP
I 2

 
 

No
. o

f ra
cia

l in
cid

en
ts 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 co
un

cil 
pe

r 
10

0,0
00

 po
pu

lat
ion

 
No

t 
ap

pro
pri

a
te 

to 
se

t 
0 

n/a
 

No
t p

os
sib

le 
to 

an
tic
ipa

te 
the

 no
. o

f re
po

rte
d i

nc
ide

nts
. 

Th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 ca
n o

nly
 be

 re
po

rte
d r

etr
os

pe
cti
ve

ly 
LD

 LP
I 3

 
% 

of 
tho

se
 ra

cia
l 

inc
ide

nts
 th

at 
ha

ve
 

res
ult

ed
 in

 fu
rth

er 
ac

tio
n 

10
0%

 
10

0.0
0 

n/a
 

No
t p

os
sib

le 
to 

an
tic
ipa

te 
the

 no
. o

f in
cid

en
ts 

tha
t w

ill 
res

ult
 in

 fu
rth

er 
ac

tio
n. 

Th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 ca
n o

nly
 be

 
rep

ort
ed

 re
tro

sp
ec

tiv
ely

 
LD

 LP
I 1

 
Th

e l
ev

el 
of 

the
 Eq

ua
lity

 
Sta

nd
ard

 to
 w
hic

h t
he

 
Au

tho
rity

 co
nfo

rm
s 

 
Le

ve
l 2

 
mo

vin
g 

tow
ard

s 
Le

ve
l 3

 
Le

ve
l 2

 
Le

ve
l 2

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 

LD
 LP

I 4
 

Th
e d

uty
 to

 pr
om

ote
 

rac
e e

qu
lity

 as
 a 

% 
of 

a 
sc
ore

ca
rd 

87
.50

 
87

.50
 

87
.50

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 
LD

 LP
I 5

 
  

% 
of 

Au
tho

rity
 bu

ild
ing

s’ 
pu

bli
c a

rea
s t

ha
t a

re 
su

ita
ble

 an
d a

cc
es

sib
le 

to 
the

 di
sa

ble
d 

85
.00

% 
85

.70
 

85
.70

 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 

Page 100



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
LD

 LP
I 6

 
% 

de
bt 

co
lle
cti
on

 le
tte

rs 
se

nt 
< 1

0 d
ay

s 
 

10
0%

 
 

10
0.0

0 
10

0.0
0 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 

LD
 LP

I 7
 

% 
of 

int
ern

al 
clie

nts
 

co
mp

let
ing

 cl
ien

t 
sa

tis
fac

tio
n s

urv
ey

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 th
is 
ye

ar,
 no

 ta
rge

t s
et 

No
t p

os
sib

le 
to 

su
pp

ly 
fig

ure
s a

s b
as

eli
ne

 da
ta 

be
ing

 
co

lla
ted

  
LD

 LP
I 8

 
% 

of 
pe

op
le 

wh
o a

re 
aw

are
 of

  th
e e

lec
ted

 
me

mb
er 

co
mp

lai
nts

 
sy
ste

m 
n/a

 
n/a

 
n/a

 
Ne

w 
PI 

int
rod

uc
ed

 th
is 
ye

ar,
 no

 ta
rge

t s
et 

No
t p

os
sib

le 
to 

su
pp

ly 
fig

ure
s a

s b
as

eli
ne

 da
ta 

be
ing

 
co

lla
ted

 
LD

 LP
I 9

 
% 

of 
om

bu
ds

ma
n 

co
mp

lai
nts

 re
sp

on
de

d t
o 

by
 of

fic
ers

 w
ith

in 
10

 
da

ys
 of

 re
ce

ivin
g t

he
 

req
ue

st 
10

0 
83

.33
 

90
.00

 
Ta

rge
t m

iss
ed

 in
 Au

gu
st 

on
ly 
an

d o
nly

 by
 on

e d
ay

 w
hic

h 
wa

s d
ue

 to
 re

lev
an

t o
ffic

ers
 be

ing
 on

 le
av

e c
om

bin
ed

 
wit

h a
n a

dm
ini
str

ati
ve

 er
ror

 
LD

 LP
I 1

0 
% 

of 
om

bu
ds

ma
n 

co
mp

lai
nts

 re
sp

on
de

d t
o 

by
 th

e c
ou

nc
il w

ith
in 

28
 

da
ys
 

10
0 

83
.33

 
90

.00
 

Ta
rge

t m
iss

ed
 in

 Au
gu

st 
on

ly 
wh

ich
 w

as
 du

e t
o r

ele
va

nt 
off

ice
rs 

be
ing

 on
 le

av
e c

om
bin

ed
 w
ith

 an
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tiv
e 

err
or 

LD
 LP

I 1
1 

% 
Ca

bin
et 

Re
po

rts
 = 

Fo
rw

ard
 Pl

an
 ta

rge
ts 

 
80

% 
84

.86
 

80
.00

 
Th

is 
ind

ica
tor

 is
 a 

co
rpo

rat
e n

ot 
a d

ep
art

me
nta

l in
dic

ato
r 

LD
 LP

I 1
2 

 
% 

co
mm

itte
e m

inu
tes

 
pro

du
ce

d w
ith

in 
5 d

ay
s 

10
0%

 
90

.51
 

92
.00

 
Ca

pa
cit
y i
ss
ue

s w
ith

in 
the

 co
mm

itte
e t

ea
m 

fol
low

ing
 th

e 
los

s o
f a

 po
st 

res
ult

ed
 in

 so
me

 m
inu

tes
 m

iss
ing

 th
e 

tar
ge

t. T
his

 ha
s b

ee
n a

dd
res

se
d w

ith
 fu

rth
er 

sta
ff 

ch
an

ge
s a

nd
 re

-al
loc

ati
on

 of
 w
ork

 

Page 101



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
LD

 LP
I 1

3 
 

% 
pla

nn
ing

 co
mm

itte
e 

mi
nu

tes
 pr

od
uc

ed
 w
ith

in 
10

 da
ys
 

10
0%

 
10

0 
10

0 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 
LD

 LP
I 1

4 
% 

co
mm

itte
e a

ge
nd

a 
dis

pa
tch

ed
 w
ith

in 
5 c

lea
r 

wo
rki

ng
 da

ys
 of

 m
ee

tin
g 

10
0 

10
0 

10
0 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 

LD
 LP

I 1
5 

 
% 

of 
res

po
nd

ers
 at

 
an

nu
al 

ca
nv

as
s f

or 
reg

ist
rat

ion
 of

 el
ec

tor
s 

93
.50

 
n/a

 
95

.00
 

Th
e a

nn
ua

l c
an

va
ss
 do

es
 no

t e
nd

 un
til 
30

 N
ov

em
be

r 0
8. 

Th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 is
 re

po
rte

d a
nn

ua
lly 

 
LD

 LP
I 1

6 
 

% 
of 

ele
cto

rs 
wit

h p
os

tal
 

vo
tes

 
11

.25
 

11
.77

 
12

.00
 

Fo
llo
win

g t
he

 an
nu

al 
ca

nv
as

s f
urt

he
r a

dm
ini
str

ati
ve

 w
ork

 
is 

req
uir

ed
. T

his
 in

dic
ato

r is
 re

po
rte

d a
nn

ua
lly 

LD
 LP

I 1
7 

An
nu

al 
ad

dit
ion

s t
o t

he
 

rol
lin
g r

eg
ist

er 
15

00
 

(=2
%)

 
10

72
 

(1.
45

%)
 

15
00

 
(+2

%)
 

Th
is 
fig

ure
 re

pre
se

nts
 th

e 2
00

7/0
8 r

eg
ist
er 

an
d t

he
 ne

w 
reg

ist
er 

is 
pu

bli
sh

ed
 on

 1 
De

ce
mb

er 
08

 fo
llo
win

g t
he

 
an

nu
al 

ca
nv

as
s. 

Th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 is
 re

po
rte

d a
nn

ua
lly 

 Hu
ma

n R
es
ou
rce

s &
 O
rg
an
isa
tio
na
l D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

 Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

LP
I fo

rm
erl

y 
BV

 12
 

Av
era

ge
 nu

mb
er 

of 
da

ys
 lo

st 
du

e t
o 

sic
kn

es
s  

8.7
5 

5.0
1 

10
.57

 
Sic

kn
es

s l
ev

els
 re

ma
in 

a c
on

ce
rn.

  A
 ‘p

erf
orm

an
ce

 cl
ini
c’ 

wa
s h

eld
 at

 th
e e

nd
 of

 O
cto

be
r a

nd
 an

oth
er 

wil
l b

e h
eld

 
sh

ort
ly.
 

LP
I fo

rm
erl

y 
BV

11
a 

% 
of 

top
 5%

 of
 ea

rne
rs 

wh
o a

re 
wo

me
n 

33
 

39
.10

 
39

.10
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 

Page 102



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

LP
I fo

rm
erl

y 
BV

11
b 

% 
of 

top
 5%

 ea
rne

rs 
fro

m 
mi

no
rity

 et
hn

ic 
co

mm
un

itie
s 

1 
0 

0 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e m

ore
 th

an
 10

% 
be

low
 ta

rge
t 

LP
I fo

rm
erl

y 
BV

11
c 

% 
of 

top
 5%

 ea
rne

rs 
wit

h a
 di

sa
bil
ity
 

3.8
8 

0 
0 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e m
ore

 th
an

 10
% 

be
low

 ta
rge

t 
LP

I fo
rm

erl
y 

BV
14

 
% 

of 
em

plo
ye

es
 re

tiri
ng

 
ea

rly
 (e

xc
lud

ing
 ill-

he
alt

h) 
 12
 

(lin
ke

d t
o 

im
pli
ca

tio
ns

 of
 

MT
FP

) 
 

1.7
5 

1.7
5 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 

LP
I fo

rm
erl

y 
BV

15
 

% 
em

plo
ye

es
 re

tiri
ng

 
on

 th
e g

rou
nd

 of
 ill-

he
alt

h 
0.2

 
0 

0 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e b

ett
er 

tha
n t

arg
et 

 
LP

I fo
rm

erl
y 

BV
16

a 
% 

of 
em

plo
ye

es
 w
ith

 a 
dis

ab
ility

 
2.7

5 
1.0

0 
1.0

0 
An

 aw
are

ne
ss

 ca
mp

aig
n i

s i
n p

rog
res

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 ad
ve

rts
 

be
ing

 pl
ac

ed
 in

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 pu
bli
ca

tio
ns

 su
ch

 as
 Et

hn
ic 

Br
ita

in 
  

LP
I fo

rm
erl

y 
BV

17
a 

% 
of 

em
plo

ye
es

 fro
m 

mi
no

rity
 et

hn
ic 

co
mm

un
itie

s 
2.0

 
1.7

5 
1.7

5 
An

 aw
are

ne
ss

 ca
mp

aig
n i

s i
n p

rog
res

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 ad
ve

rts
 

be
ing

 pl
ac

ed
 in

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 pu
bli
ca

tio
ns

 su
ch

 as
 Et

hn
ic 

Br
ita

in 
  

LP
I H

um
an

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

% 
po

sts
 va

ca
nt 

n/a
 

9.8
5 

n/a
 

Ac
tiv
ity
 m

ea
su

re 
LP

I H
um

an
 

Re
so

urc
es

 
% 

of 
sta

ff a
pp

rai
sa

ls 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

10
0 

n/a
 

 
W
ill b

e m
ea

su
red

 du
rin

g F
eb

rua
ry 

to 
Ma

y 2
00

9 

Page 103



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

LP
I H

um
an

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

% 
of 

pa
yro

ll p
aid

 
co

rre
ctl

y 
99

.00
 

 
 

Fig
ure

s n
ot 

ye
t a

va
ila
ble

 

Page 104



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Fin
an
cia
l S
erv

ice
s  

 Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
LP

IC
T1

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x c

oll
ec

ted
 

98
.91

 
59

.00
 

98
.91

 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 co

lle
cti
on

 is
 an

tic
ipa

ted
 to

 be
 on

 ta
rge

t 
ho

we
ve

r th
ere

 ar
e c

on
ce

rns
 th

at 
the

 im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 

ec
on

om
y o

ve
r th

e n
ex

t 6
 m

on
ths

 m
ay

 re
du

ce
 cu

sto
me

rs’
 

ab
ility

 to
 pa

y. 
BD

C 
sta

ff h
av

e r
ec

eiv
ed

 de
bt 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
tra

ini
ng

 to
 su

pp
ort

 cu
sto

me
rs 

in 
the

 pa
ym

en
t o

f a
rre

ars
 

LP
IC
T2

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 Bu
sin

es
s 

Ra
tes

 co
lle
cte

d 
99

.02
 

59
.37

 
98

 
Th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f th
e e

co
no

my
 ha

s a
ffe

cte
d t

he
 ab

ility
 to

 pa
y 

bu
sin

es
s r

ate
s b

y l
oc

al 
co

mp
an

ies
. F

ull
 re

co
ve

ry 
is 
be

ing
 

un
de

rta
ke

n t
o i

nc
lud

e p
ho

ne
 ca

lls 
to 

bu
sin

es
se

s i
n 

arr
ea

rs.
 It 

is 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 th

at 
thi

s d
ec

lin
e w

ill i
mp

ac
t o

n 
the

 ye
ar 

en
d p

os
itio

n 
LP

IF1
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

Fra
ud

 
Inv

es
tig

ato
rs 

pe
r 1

00
0 

ca
se

loa
d 

0.4
3 

0.4
2 

0.4
3 

An
 in

cre
as

e i
n b

en
efi

t c
as

elo
ad

 w
ill i

mp
ac

t o
n t

his
 PI

 as
 

the
re 

is 
a s

tat
ic 

nu
mb

er 
of 

inv
es

tig
ato

rs 
LP

IF2
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

Pr
os

ec
uti

on
s 

pe
r 1

00
0 c

as
elo

ad
 

5 
1.0

6 
10

.06
 

Ex
ce

ed
ing

 ta
rge

t 

NI
 17

9 
VF

M 
- to

tal
 ne

t v
alu

e o
f 

on
-go

ing
 ca

sh
 re

lea
sin

g 
VF

M 
ga

ins
 si

nc
e t

he
 

sta
rt o

f 2
00

8-0
9 

£6
02

k 
£3

05
k 

£6
15

k 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e s

lig
htl

y b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 

NI
18

0 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

cir
cu

ms
tan

ce
s w

hic
h 

aff
ec

t c
us

tom
er'

s H
B/C

T 
en

titl
em

en
t 

n/a
 

 
 

Un
ab

le 
to 

ca
lcu

lat
e t

his
 as

 it 
rel

ies
 on

 in
for

ma
tio

n f
rom

 
DW

P w
hic

h t
he

y h
av

e n
ot 

ye
t p

rov
ide

d (
all
 co

un
cils

 ar
e 

in 
the

 sa
me

 po
sit
ion

 on
 th

is)
 

Page 105



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
NI

18
1 

Tim
e t

ak
en

 to
 pr

oc
es

s 
HB

/C
T b

en
efi

t n
ew

 
cla

im
s o

r c
ha

ng
e e

ve
nts

 
16

 
16

.76
 

16
 

A p
ilo
t tr

ial
 of

 a 
fas

t tr
ac

k v
oic

e s
ys
tem

 (s
up

po
rte

d b
y 

DW
P)
 w
ill b

e i
mp

lem
en

ted
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r, t
his

 is
 ex

pe
cte

d 
to 

red
uc

e t
im

e t
o p

roc
es

s s
om

e c
lai
ms

 by
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

am
ou

nt 
of 

tim
e. 

LP
IB2

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 
rec

ov
era

ble
 

ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 (in

 ye
ar)

 
tha

t h
av

e b
ee

n 
rec

ov
ere

d  

No
 ta

rge
t 

se
t 

60
.04

 
 

 

LP
IB3

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 
rec

ov
era

ble
 

ov
erp

ay
me

nts
 (in

 ye
ar 

an
d p

rev
iou

s y
ea

rs)
 th

at 
ha

ve
 be

en
 re

co
ve

red
  

No
 ta

rge
t 

se
t 

16
.43

 
 

 

FP
00

1 
% 

of 
inv

oic
es

 pa
id 

wit
hin

 
30

 da
ys
 of

 re
ce

ipt
 

98
% 

99
.53

 
99

.00
 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e s
lig
htl

y b
ett

er 
tha

n t
arg

et 
 

FP
01

 
Se

ttin
g o

f C
ou

nc
il t
ax

 in
 

lin
e w

ith
 C
ou

nc
il 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d p

rio
riti

es
 

Ma
rch

 09
 

 
 

On
 ta

rge
t 

AC
00

2 
Pr
od

uc
tio

n o
f M

on
ito

rin
g 

Sta
tem

en
ts 

to 
Of

fic
ers

 
7 d

ay
s 

7 d
ay

s 
7 d

ay
s 

Ou
ttu

rn 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

qu
al 

tar
ge

t 
 

AC
00

3 
Pr
od

uc
tio

n o
f M

on
ito

rin
g 

Sta
tem

en
ts 

to 
Me

mb
ers

 
qu

art
erl

y 
Q 

Q 
Ou

ttu
rn 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o e
qu

al 
tar

ge
t 

 

Page 106



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
AC

00
5 

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 Sy

ste
ms

 
an

d A
cc

ou
nt 

rec
on

cili
ati

on
s –

 in
co

me
 

an
d p

ay
rol

l 
4 w

ork
ing

 
da

ys
 

3.3
3 

4 
 

AC
00

6 
Co

mp
let

ion
 of

 Sy
ste

ms
 

an
d A

cc
ou

nt 
rec

on
cili

ati
on

s –
 C
tax

 
an

d N
ND

R 
3 w

ee
ks
 

3 
3 

On
 ta

rge
t 

AC
00

7 

% 
of 

De
bto

rs 
ov

er 
35

 
da

ys
 

10
% 

20
.90

 
15

% 

Th
e o

uts
tan

din
g d

eb
t o

f £
27

3k
 re

lat
es

 to
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 ar

ea
s i

nc
lud

ing
 ca

r p
ark

 fin
es

, S
10

6 f
un

ds
 an

d 
ge

ne
ral

 hi
re 

ch
arg

es
 fo

r th
e u

se
 of

 ou
r s

erv
ice

s. 
A 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ac
tio

ns
 ar

e b
ein

g u
nd

ert
ak

en
 in

clu
din

g 
co

nta
cti
ng

 co
mp

an
ies

 to
 m

ak
e p

ay
me

nt 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 to
 

se
cu

re 
the

 de
bt 

an
d a

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 ca

r p
ark

 fin
es

 
pro

ce
ss
es

 is
 be

ing
 un

de
rta

ke
n t

o e
sta

bli
sh

 th
e v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y i
n t

he
 re

co
ve

ry 
of 

de
bt.

 It 
is 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 th

at 
the

 
fin

an
cia

l d
ow

ntu
rn 

wil
l im

pa
ct 

in 
the

 cu
sto

me
rs’

 ab
ility

 to
 

pa
y o

uts
tan

din
g a

rre
ars

 
AC

00
4 

De
live

ry 
of 

Fin
an

cia
l 

Tra
ini
ng

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
4 

se
ss
ion

s 
pa

 
 

4 
 

AC
00

1 
Co

mp
let

ion
 of

 St
atu

tor
y 

Ac
co

un
ts 

Ju
ne

 09
 

 
 

On
 ta

rge
t 

Page 107



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 
IA0

1 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
au

dit
 

as
sig

nm
en

ts 
pla

nn
ed

 fo
r 

the
 ye

ar 
ac

tua
lly 

fin
ish

ed
 

90
% 

0%
 

90
% 

Du
e t

o t
he

 de
lay

s i
n c

om
ple

tin
g t

he
 20

07
/08

 pl
an

 (s
taf

f 
sh

ort
ag

es
) th

e 2
00

8/0
9 p

lan
 w
as

 la
te 

in 
co

mm
en

cin
g. 

In 
ord

er 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 th

e p
lan

 as
 an

tic
ipa

ted
 a 

tem
po

rar
y 

au
dit

or 
ha

s b
ee

n a
pp

oin
ted

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 su

pp
ort

 fro
m 

W
orc

es
ter

 C
ity
 to

 de
live

r th
e p

lan
 by

 ye
ar 

en
d 

IA0
2 

Pla
nn

ed
 t

ota
l 

tim
e 

for
 

mo
nth

 
v 

tot
al 

tim
e 

ac
tua

lly 
bo

ok
ed

 
for

 
mo

nth
 

95
% 

80
% 

90
% 

As
 ab

ov
e  

IA0
3 

Ac
tua

l t
im

e 
bo

ok
ed

 fo
r 

the
 m

on
th 

tha
t is

 cl
as

se
d 

as
 pr

od
uc

tiv
e 

69
% 

58
% 

60
% 

As
 ab

ov
e 

IA0
4 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

fin
ish

ed
 jo

bs
 

co
mp

let
ed

 
wit

hin
 

da
y 

all
oc

ati
on

. 
86

% 
0%

 
80

% 
As

 ab
ov

e 
IA0

5 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

rep
ort

ed
 

tha
t 

we
re 

ac
ce

pte
d /

 im
ple

me
nte

d 
96

% 
0%

 
85

% 
As

 ab
ov

e 

IA0
6 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

cu
sto

me
r 

su
rve

ys
 

ret
urn

ed
 

tha
t 

sc
ore

d 
the

 s
erv

ice
 a

s 
go

od
 

93
% 

0%
 

90
% 

As
 ab

ov
e 

 

Page 108



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

E G
ov
ern

me
nt 
an
d C

us
tom

er 
Se
rvi
ce
s 

 
Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

IC
T

LP
I2

.1 
Re

so
lut

ion
 of

 re
po

rte
d 

inc
ide

nts
 w
ith

in 
tim

es
ca

le 
88

% 
94

.06
% 

95
% 

 

IC
T

LP
I2

.2  

Ac
qu

isit
ion

 co
sts

 of
 a 

wo
rks

tat
ion

 
£4

25
 

£3
70

 
£3

70
 

 

IC
T

LP
I2

.3  

Ac
qu

isit
ion

 co
sts

 of
 a 

lap
top

 
£6

00
 

£4
50

 
£4

50
 

 

IC
T

LP
I2

.4  

Su
pp

ort
 co

sts
 pe

r 
wo

rks
tat

ion
 

£2
30

 
£2

30
 

£2
20

 
 

 IC
T

LP
I2

.5 

W
ork

sta
tio

ns
 su

pp
ort

ed
 pe

r 
su

pp
ort

 sp
ec

ial
ist
 

17
5 

17
5 

17
5 

 

IC
T S

erv
ice

 av
ail
ab

ility
: 

 IC
T

LP
I2

.6 
Le

ve
l 1

 – 
ne

tw
ork

 is
 

un
av

ail
ab

le 
bu

t u
se

rs 
ca

n 
sti
ll u

se
 th

eir
 PC

 lo
ca

lly 
10

0
% 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

 

Page 109



Es
tim

ate
d O

utt
ur
n a

nd
 co

mm
en
tar
y f
or
 Pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 in
 20
08
/09
 B
us
ine

ss
 Pl
an
s  
    
    
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
1  

Re
f. 

De
sc
rip
tio
n 

20
08
/09
 

Ta
rg
et 

Po
sit
ion

 
at 
en
d 

Se
p 0

8 
Es
tim

ate
d  

ou
ttu
rn
 

Co
mm

en
tar
y o
n E

O 

Le
ve

l 3
 -  

ma
jor

 ap
pli
ca

tio
ns

 
av

ail
ab

le 
for

 al
l u

se
rs 

of 
a 

sp
ec

ific
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n 

95
% 

95
% 

95
% 

 

CS CL
P

I3.
1 

90
% 

or 
mo

re 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 

req
ue

sts
 w
ill b

e r
es

olv
ed

 
en

tire
ly 
wit

hin
 th

e C
SC

. 
 

90
% 

98
.00

 
90

.00
 

 

CS CL
P

I3.
2 

80
% 

of 
tot

al 
tel

ep
ho

ne
 ca

lls 
wil

l b
e a

ns
we

red
 w
ith

in 
30

 
se

co
nd

s. 
 

80
% 

89
.00

 
85

.00
 

 

CS CL
P

I3.
3 

Th
e a

ve
rag

e t
im

e t
ha

t a
 

cu
sto

me
r w

ait
s i

n t
he

 C
SC

 
tel

ep
ho

ne
 qu

eu
e w

ill b
e 3

0 
se

co
nd

s o
r le

ss
 

30
 

24
 

30
 

 

IM
L

PI6
.

1 
% 

FO
I re

qu
es

ts 
res

po
nd

ed
 

< 2
0 d

ay
s 

10
0%

 
10

0.0
0 

10
0.0

0 
 

IM
L

PI6
.

2 
% 

Da
ta 

Pr
ote

cti
on

 Ac
ce

ss
 

req
ue

sts
 re

sp
on

de
d <

 40
 

da
ys
 

10
0%

 
10

0.0
0 

10
0.0

0 
 

   

Page 110



04/12/2008 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

16 DECEMBER 2008 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 
 
 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT [OCTOBER 2008] 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Councillor Mike Webb  
Portfolio Holder for Customer Care 
and Service 
 

Responsible Officer Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1.  SUMMARY 

 
1.1 To report progress on actions in the Improvement Plan as at the end of 

October 2008 (Appendix 1).   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That The Board notes the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception 

Report attached as Appendix 1, and the corrective action being taken.  
 
2.2 That The Board notes that for the 141 actions highlighted for October 

within the plan 73.8 percent of the Improvement Plan is on target 
[green], 5.0 percent is one month behind [amber] and 10.6 percent is 
over one month behind [red].  10.6 percent of actions have been 
reprogrammed with approval. [NB reprogrammed actions are those 
that have been suspended completely and those that have been 
moved to a later point in the year.  Extended actions are listed 
separately are actions that are anticipated to take longer than had 
originally been programmed]. 

 
2.3  This month’s performance is shown on the first page of Appendix 1.   
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 July 2008 Cabinet approved the Improvement Plan 2008/09.  The 

Improvement Plan is directly linked to the five corporate priorities and 
thirteen enablers identified in the Council Plan 2008/2011. 

 
3.2 The Improvement Plan is designed to push the Council through to a 

rating of Fair during 2008.   
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 No financial implications.  
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 111



04/12/2008 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No Legal Implications.  
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The Improvement Plan relates to all of the Council’s four objectives and 

five priorities as per the 2008/2011 Council Plan. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1.1 The risks associated with the Improvement Plan are covered in the 

CCPP departmental risk register. Specific corporate risks are related to 
the Improvement Plan in the following ways: 

 
Corporate Risk Title Improvement Plan Reference 
KO1: Effective Financial Management 
and Internal Control 

FP2 – Financial Management 
FP3 – Financial Strategy 

KO2: Effective corporate leadership FP1 – Value for Money  
FP2 – Financial Management 
FP3 – Financial Strategy 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
PR2 –Improved Governance 

KO3: Effective  Member / Officer 
relations 

PR2 –Improved Governance 
HROD1 – Learning and 

Development 
KO4: Effective Member / Member 
relations 

PR2 –Improved Governance 
HROD1 – Learning and 

Development 
KO5*: Full compliance with the Civil 
Contingencies Act and effective 
Business Continuity 

PR1 – Customer Process 

KO6: Maximising the benefits of 
investment in ICT equipment and 
training 

PR3 – Spatial Business Project 

KO7: Effective partnership working PR4 – Improved Partnership 
Working 

KO8: Effective communications 
(internal and external) 

PR1 – Customer Process 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
HROD 4– Performance Culture 

KO9: Equalities and diversity agenda 
embedded across the Authority 

CP3 – Customer Service 
CP4 – Sense of Community 

KO10: Appropriate investment in 
employee development and training 

HROD1 – Learning and 
Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD4 – Performance Culture 

KO11: Effective employee recruitment 
and retention 

HROD2 – Modernisation 
 

KO12: Full compliance with all Health 
and Safety legislation 

FP3 – Financial Strategy 
PR1 – Customer Process 

Page 112



04/12/2008 

HROD2 – Modernisation 
KO13: Effective two tier working and 
Community Engagement 

CP4 – Sense of Community 
PR4 – Improved Partnership 

Working 
KO14: Successful implementation of 
Job Evaluation 

HROD2 - Modernisation 
KO15: All Council data is accurate and 
of high quality 

FP2 – Financial Management 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
PR3 – Spatial Business Project 
HROD4 – Performance culture 

KO16: The Council no longer in 
recovery 

FP1 – Value for Money 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 
Reporting 

KO17: Effective Projects Management FP1 – Value for Money 
PR3 – Spatial Business Project 

KO19: Effective Business and 
Performance Management 

FP4 – Financial and Performance 
Reporting 

KO20: Effective Customer Focused 
Authority 

CP3 – Customer Service 
CP4 – Sense of Community 
PR1 – Customer Process 

 
* KO5 and KO18 have been merged 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Improvement Plan is concerned with the strategic and operational 

issues that will affect the customer. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Please see sections CP3 and CP4 of the Improvement Plan 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 See section FP1 of the Improvement Plan 
 
11.   OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Procurement Issues: See Section FP1 of the Improvement Plan. 
Personnel Implications: See Sections HROD1-HROD4 of the 
Improvement Plan.  
Governance/Performance Management:  See Sections FP4 and PR2 
of the Improvement Plan. 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  See section CP4 of the Improvement Plan 
Policy:  All sections of the Improvement Plan relate to this. 
Environmental:  See sections CP1 and PR5 of the Improvement Plan. 

 
 12.    OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  

Page 113



04/12/2008 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No  
 

Chief Executive 
 

At CMT 
Executive Director (Partnerships and 
Projects) 

At CMT 
Executive Director (Services)  
 

At CMT 
Assistant Chief Executive Yes 

 
Head of Service Yes  
Head of Financial Services At CMT 
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

At CMT 
Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

At CMT 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 
 
13.  WARDS AFFECTED 
 
13.1 All wards  
 
14.   APPENDICES 

 
14.1  Appendix 1 Improvement Plan Exception Report October 2008 
 
15.     BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 
15.1 The full Improvement Plan for October can be found at 

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk under meetings Minutes and Agendas. A 
hard copy is also left in the Members’ Room each month. 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:   Jenny McNicol  
E Mail:  j.mcnicol@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881631 
 

Page 114



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

5 

 
PROGRESS IN 2008 
 
Overall performance as at the end of September 2008, in comparison with the previous year, is as follows: -  

 

 

 

 
 

July 2007 August 2007 September 2007 October 2007 November 2007 December 2007 
RED 1 0.6% RED 1 0.7% RED 4 2.4% RED 3 1.8% RED 5 3.1% RED 3 2.0% 
AMBER 5 3.2% AMBER 13 9.2% AMBER 11 6.6% AMBER 16 9.6% AMBER 11 7.0% AMBER 17 11.6% 
GREEN 152 95.6% GREEN 126 88.7% GREEN 149 89.2% GREEN 142 85.0% GREEN 138 86.9% GREEN 121 82.3% 
REPRO 1 0.6% REPRO 2 1.4% REPRO 3 1.8% REPRO 6 3.6% REPRO 5 3.1% REPRO 6 4.1% 

January 2008 February 2008 March 2008 April 2008 May 2008 June 2008 
RED 2 1.4% RED 2 1.4% RED 2 1.5% RED 3 2.7% RED 8 7.55% RED 6 6.3% 
AMBER 16 11.4% AMBER 10 7.3% AMBER 10 7.4% AMBER 11 9.9% AMBER 4 3.8% AMBER 4 4.2% 
GREEN 118 84.3% GREEN 122 88.4% GREEN 117 86.7% GREEN 92 82.9% GREEN 86 81.1% GREEN 74 77.0% 
REPRO 4 2.9% REPRO 4 2.9% REPRO 6 4.4% REPRO 5 4.5% REPRO 8 7.55% REPRO 12 12.5% 

July 2008 August 2008 September 2008 October 2008 November 2008 December 2008 
RED 11 8.6% RED 17 14.4% RED 16 11.9% RED 15 10.6% RED   RED   
AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 4 3.4% AMBER 8 6.0% AMBER 7 5.0% AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN 114 89.1% GREEN 96 81.4% GREEN 99 73.9% GREEN 104 73.8% GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 1 0.8% REPRO* 11 8.2% REPRO 15 10.6% REPRO   REPRO   

January 2009 February 2009 March 2009 April 2009 May 2009 June 2009 
RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   
AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   

P
age 115



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

6 

Where: - 
 
 On Target or 

completed 
 One month 

behind target 
or less 

 Over one 
month 
behind target 

 Original date 
of planned 
action 

 Re-
programmed 
date.* 

* NB. Reprogrammed actions are both those that have been suspended completely and those that have been moved to a later point in the 
year.  They are not actions that have been extended and they do not appear on the exception report. 
 
Out of the total of 141 actions for October 2008, 5 actions have been extended with approval.  This amounts to 3.5 percent of the 
original actions scheduled for this month.  Extended actions are shown with hatched marking and extend the timescale of a current 
or ongoing action on the Improvement Plan. The actions that have been extended this month are: Agree sites for relocation of 
public sector partners x 2 (1.3); Agreed plans for Longbridge (14.1); and Rolling vision of the District x 2 (14.3) 
 
An Exception Report detailing corrective actions follows: 
 
 
 
 

P
age 116



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

7 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.2.2 Identify commercial support  Issues and options consultation ended in September. 
Advice sought on OJEU process from commercial 
advisors regarding Market Hall site, but decision on 
appointing a preferred developer for wider 
developments delayed until appraisal of all sites is 
completed.  

PS Jul-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.2. Work Commenced (see 1.4) 
 

1.2.2 Identify commercial support PS             Commercial pressures and economic 
climate are likely to impact on current 
project timescales.  Report to go to 
Cabinet in November regarding 
recommendations for action. 

P
age 117



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

8 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.3.1 Consultation on Parkside  Consultation delayed by discussions with Church 
Commissioners regarding covenant on site.  The 
planning application for the new surgery goes to 
Planning Committee on 1st December. Discussions 
taking place with police and fire and rescue service 
about new facilities, but no date set at present on 
when a planning application will come forward. 

PS Aug-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.3 Agree sites for relocation of public sector partners  
 

1.3.1 Consultation on Parkside PS             Extended to December to allow for 
further negotiations 

P
age 118



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

9 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.4.2 Seek commercial advice  Issues and options consultation ended. Advice 
sought on OJEU process from commercial advisors 
regarding market hall site. Report going to Cabinet 
proposing market hall site be redeveloped and only 
when decisions have been taken on how other sites 
are to be used will further consideration be given to 
tendering for a preferred developer for wider 
developments. 

PS Jul-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.4 Reach agreement on redevelopment of the market hall site 
 

1.4.2 Seek commercial advice PS             Commercial pressures and economic 
climate are likely to impact on current 
project timescales. Report to go to 
Cabinet in November regarding 
recommendations for action 

P
age 119



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

10 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.6.2 Meet with AWM  Efforts made to arrange meeting, but AWM have not 
yet confirmed a date.  

PS Sept-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.6 High street enhancement and improved high street events 
 

1.6.2 Meet with AWM PS             Extended to November. 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.7.1 Network Rail to agree business 
case and funding for station. 

 Network Rail still working on business case and 
multiple funding of station project.  There is not much 
the District Council can do here, but wait for the 
funding package to be agreed.    AWM /Network Rail 
meeting not successful.   

HB Jul-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.7 Agree funding and planning permission for train station redevelopment, with transport links to town centre 
 

1.7.1 Network Rail to agree 
business case and funding 
for station. 

HB             Network Rail still working on business 
case and multiple funding of station 
project.  A meeting of the project team 
will take place in November after which 
more should be known. Extended again 
to November 

P
age 120



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

11 

 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.7.2 Agree historic dimension to new 
build. 

 There have been discussions with Network Rail and 
BRUG, but until the station funding package is 
agreed this cannot be finalised. Timescales may be 
extended further.  AWM /Network Rail meeting not 
successful.   

HB Jul-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.7 Agree funding and planning permission for train station redevelopment, with transport links to town centre 
 

1.7.2 Agree historic dimension to 
new build. 

HB             Network Rail still working on business 
case and multiple funding of station 
project.  On hold pending funding 
resolution.  

P
age 121



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

12 

 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.7.3 Obtain planning permission.  The planning application process cannot commence 
until funding is approved.  

HB Jul-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

1.7 Agree funding and planning permission for train station redevelopment, with transport links to town centre 
 

1.7.3 Obtain planning permission. HB             Network Rail still working on business 
case and multiple funding of station 
project.   On hold pending funding 
resolution. 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.1.6 Develop action plans and submit 
to LSP and Cabinet (if Budget 
Bids) 

 Currently out to consultation with two stakeholder groups. HB Jul-08 Oct-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.1 Neighbourhood management 
 

4.1.6 Develop action plans and 
submit to LSP and Cabinet 
(if Budget Bids) 

HB             Have developed plan for Rubery, but 
need to develop for Alvechurch.  HB to 
meet with the Leader in November to 
develop this. 

P
age 122



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

13 

 

 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
3 

Establish monitoring & meeting 
arrangements set out in the SLA 
with the Artrix. 

 Work in this area is ongoing due to concern raised 
by the Operating Trust of the Artrix over some of the 
phrasing in the agreement document.  Extended to 
December. 

JG Jul-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.13 Establish monitoring & 
meeting arrangements set 
out in the SLA with the 
Artrix. 

JG             Officers have forwarded the revised SLA 
to the Operating Trust and are awaiting 
feedback before commencing formal 
discussions.   Officers have yet to 
receive feedback and are at present 
chasing this issue up and requesting 
completion pre Christmas. 

P
age 123



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

14 

 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
4 

Agree service improvement plan 
and targets based on SLA, 
previous years performance and 
BDC user feedback out turns.  

 Work in this area is ongoing due to concern raised 
by the Operating Trust of the Artrix over some of the 
phrasing in the agreement document.  Extended to 
December. 

JG Jul-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.14 Agree service improvement 
plan and targets based on 
SLA, previous years 
performance and BDC user 
feedback out turns.  

JG             Officers have forwarded the revised SLA 
to the Operating Trust and are awaiting 
feedback before commencing formal 
discussions.   

P
age 124



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

15 

 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
5 

Agree service improvement plan 
and targets based on SLA, 
previous years performance and 
BDC user feedback out turns.  

 Due to delays in the acceptance of the SLA work in 
this area has not yet been progressed. Extended to 
January. 

JG Sep-08 Jan-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.15 Agree service improvement 
plan and targets based on 
SLA, previous years 
performance and BDC user 
feedback out turns.  

JG        
 

     Officers have forwarded the revised SLA 
to the Operating Trust and are awaiting 
feedback before commencing formal 
discussions.   

FP1: Value For Money 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

6.2.3 Transfer Dolphin Centre to Leisure 
Trust  

 Trust withdrew from transfer negotiations on 4th 
September.   Service review undertaken in pursuit of 
efficiencies and these will be included in report to 
Cabinet on 4th December. 

PS Jul-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

6.2 Alternative methods of service delivery, to include revisiting the shared services/ joint working agenda 
 

6.2.3 Transfer Dolphin Centre to 
Leisure Trust  

PS             Report to Cabinet on 4th December. 

P
age 125



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

16 

 

 

 

FP1: Value For Money 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

6.5.5 Comparable costing information for 
benchmarking to be analysed using 
other councils information 

 Discussions arranged with Audit Commission and 
local excellent VFM Councils to identify areas of 
costing to compare with BDC  

JLP Oct-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

6.5 VFM ratings 
 

6.5.5 Comparable costing 
information for 
benchmarking to be 
analysed using other 
councils information 

JLP             To be undertaken in November 

 FP4: Financial and Performance Reporting 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

9.2.4 ‘Glossy’ Annual Report published  Wrap around produced which will go out in 
November.  Delayed, as waiting final accounts sign 
off from auditors. 

HB Sept-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

9.2 Integrated Annual Report 
 

9.2.4 ‘Glossy’ Annual Report 
published 

HB             Published in November. 

P
age 126



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

17 

 

 

 FP4: Financial and Performance Reporting 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

9.3.1 Monthly reporting to Portfolio Holders  Running but need to check on how these are working.  
Need to re-activate this. 

HB Oct-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

9.3 Performance and Project Management 
 

9.3.1 Monthly reporting to 
Portfolio Holders 

HB             Running but need to check on how these 
are working.  Need to re-activate this. 

PR1: Customer Process 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

10.3.
2 

Ordered functions by tolerance  Work progressing on business continuity plan. However, 
the preparation of the plan has take longer than 
anticipated and the plan will now not be completed before 
mid November.  Report will go to Leaders Group in 
January 2009. 

PS Aug-08 Jan-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

10.3 Business Continuity 
 

10.3.2 Ordered functions by 
tolerance 

PS             Extended again to January. 

P
age 127



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

18 

 

 

 PR3: Spatial Business Project 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

12.2.
3 

Review results and revise 
standards 

 Focus groups held.  Review will not take place until 
first draft of customer access strategy in November. 

HB Sept-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

12.2 Speed of processing customer queries 
 

12.2.3 Review results and revise 
standards 

HB             Extended to November when draft CA 
Strategy will have been developed. 

HR&OD2: Modernisation 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

16.1.
3 

Establish Workforce Planning 
Champions for each Service area 

 Timeline being adjusted to take account of joint 
working with RBC. 

JP Sept-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

16.1 Workforce Planning  
 

16.1.3 Establish Workforce 
Planning Champions for 
each Service area 

JP             Project plan on workforce planning is 
being revised to align with Redditch’s 
work in this area. HOS to update 
Improvement Plan with new project plan 
dates 

P
age 128



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

19 

 

HR&OD2: Modernisation 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

16.1.
4 

Data Collection  Timeline adjusted to take account of joint working 
with RBC. 

JP Sept-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

16.1 Workforce Planning  
 

16.1.4 Data Collection JP             Project plan on workforce planning is 
being revised to align with Redditch’s 
work in this area. HOS to update 
Improvement Plan with new project plan 
dates  P

age 129



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

20 

 

HR&OD2: Modernisation 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

16.2.2 Implementation  Special Cabinet meeting held on 22nd October to consider 
how to proceed 

JP Aug-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

16.2 Single Status  
 

16.2.2 Implementation JP             Cabinet resolved to begin statutory 90 
day period of consultation with the trade 
unions and BERR with a view to 
potentially moving to dismissal and re-
engagement 

HR&OD2: Modernisation 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

16.2.3 Appeals  Special Cabinet meeting held on 22nd October to consider 
how to proceed 

JP Oct-08 Dec-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

16.2 Single Status  
 

16.2.3 Appeals JP             Cabinet resolved to begin statutory 90 
day period of consultation with the trade 
unions and BERR with a view to 
potentially moving to dismissal and re-
engagement 

P
age 130



Exception Report for October 2008 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/12/2008 16:49 
 

21 

 

HR&OD2: Modernisation 
Ref  October 2008 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

16.4.
3 

Produce quick guide to 
recruitment process 

 Delayed by 2 months due to workload arising from 
payroll transfer. 

JP Sept-08 Nov-08 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly 

Au
g. 

Se
p. 

Oc
t. 

No
v. 

De
c. 

Ja
n. 

Fe
b. 

Ma
r. 

Ap
r. 

Ma
y 

Ju
ne

 Corrective Action 

16.4 Recruitment and retention 
 

16.4.3 Produce quick guide to 
recruitment process 

JP             In the process of drawing up guide 
together with flowchart 

P
age 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

16 DECEMBER 2008 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD PROPOSED PROGRAMME 
2008/09 

 
Responsible Member 
 

Councillor -  James Duddy, Performance 
Management Board Chairman  

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  -Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the updated work programme for 2007/08 (March only 

as background) and the agreed work programme for 2008/2009. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

i. The Board considers the programme and updates it if required. 
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The recent Audit Commission Direction of Travel report described the 

Council’s performance management arrangements as “robust” and 
“becoming embedded”.  The Performance Management Board has played 
an important role in this improvement, providing a “star chamber” where 
portfolio holders and officers can be challenged on a range of performance 
issues. 

 
3.2  The 2007/2008 programme has evolved through the year, as the Board 

has identified new issues it wishes to look at, but the basic nature of the 
programme should be fixed due to the cyclical nature of financial and 
performance management.  The 2007/2008 programme has had some 
slippage, but this needs to be set in the context of the level of detail that is 
being provided to Members.  For example, many councils only report 
performance quarterly and few have an improvement plan or one that is as 
detailed as Bromsgrove’s.   

 
3.3 Members have strengthened the role of the Board by reviewing the work 

programme each month and receiving a quarterly recommendation tracker 
report.  Finally, Member governance has been an issue for previous 
inspections; however, the quality of the debate at the Board would 
compare favourably with other councils. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 133



4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The proposed new timetable links to the financial planning cycle. 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications to the report. 
 
6. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The Board’s programme applies to all the Council’s objectives. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The Board has previously expressed an interest in risk management.  This 

falls under the remit of the Audit Board; however, PMB can make 
recommendations to this Board or Cabinet on issues around risk 
management identified through its work. 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The Board will receive customer complaints data during 2008/09 as part of 

the quarterly integrated financial and performance reports. 
 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Procurement Issues N/A 
 
Personnel Implications  N/A 
Governance/Performance Management N/A 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 N/A 
Policy N/A 
Environmental N/A 
Equalities and Diversity N/A 

 
 
 
 
 
10. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holders 
 

Via E-Mail and at 
PMB. 

Chief Executive 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Via e-mail. 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Via e-mail. 

Page 134



Head of Financial Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – PMB Work Programme 2008/09  
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

2007/08 PMB Work Programme. 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Name:   Hugh Bennett  
E Mail:  h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881430 
 

Page 135



Appendix 1 
 

Proposed Performance Management Board Work Programme 2008/09 
 

Date Agenda Item 
 

18 Mar 08 Period 10 07/08 Performance Report. 
 
Period 10 07/08 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report. 
 
External Audit Report (considered by Audit Board) 
 
Employee Stress Survey Results 
 
Council Plan 2008/2011 
 
PMB Work Programme 2008/2009. 
 

22 Apr 08 Period 11 07/08 Performance Report. 
 
Period 11 07/08 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report. 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update (deferred to enable 
update to contain findings from Housing Inspection) 
 
Direction of Travel. 
 
VFM Licensing Review. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

20 May 08 Period 12 07/08 Integrated Finance & Performance report 
 
Period 12 07/08 Improvement  Plan Mark 2 progress report 
 
Annual PACT review (deferred from March) 
 
Neighbourhood Area Committee Evaluation Report (deferred 
to enable sufficient time for consideration by Leader’s Group 
and Cabinet). 
 
Customer Panel 2 
 
Spatial Project Monitoring Report 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

17 Jun 08 Period 1 07/08 Performance Report 
 
Period 1 Improvement Plan 2008/2009 Mark 3 
 

Page 136



Spatial Project Monitoring Report 
 
Artrix SLA 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

15 Jul 08 Period 2 08/09 Performance Report 
 
Period 2 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report 
 
Youth Provision Presentation 
 
Annual Financial and Performance Report 2007/2008 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 
Spatial Project Monitoring Report 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

19 Aug 08 Quarter 1 08/09 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 3 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Customer Panel 3 (Customer Satisfaction). 
 
Housing Inspection Report and Updated Inspection Action 
Plan. 
 
Local Neighbourhood Partnerships 
 
Community Strategy/LSP Performance Update 
 
Spatial Project Monitoring Report. 
 
Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

16 Sep 08 Period 4 08/09 performance report 
 
Period 4 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report 
 
Town Centre Project Update (verbal update from Executive 
Director Partnerships and Projects) 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update (moved from August)  
 
Draft CPA Self Assessment 
 
Council Plan 2009/2012 Part 1 
 
Performance Management Strategy (deferred) 

Page 137



 
Spatial Project Monitoring Report. 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

21 Oct 08 Period 5 08/09 Performance Report. 
 
Period 5 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Concessionary Parking for Over 60s. 
 
Spatial Project Monitoring Report. 
 
(Agenda items were reduced at this meeting to enable time 
for training after the meeting). 
 

18 Nov 08 Quarter 2 08/09 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 6 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Community Strategy Annual Report 2006/07 
 
Community Strategy Update 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker (moved from Oct-08) 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

16 Dec 08 Period 7 08/09 Performance Report. 
 
Period 7 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Artrix Performance Report (moved from Nov 08.) 
 
2008/2009 Predicted Outturn for Corporate Indicators. 
 
Spatial Project Benefits (Initial Report). 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

13 Jan 09 
 

PMB Training 

20 Jan 09 Period 8 08/08 Performance Report 
 
Period 8 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3progress report. 
 
Draft Performance Management Strategy 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
 

Page 138



17 Feb 09 Quarter 3 08/09 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 9 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Staff Survey Results (moved from September) 
 
Annual Customer First Strategy Review. 
 
6 Month Review of Data Quality Strategy. 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update. 
 
Housing Inspection Report and Updated Inspection Action 
Plan. 
 
Spatial Project Monitoring Report. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
(we need to consider the agenda for this meeting, as agenda 
too long) 
 

17 Mar 09 Period 10 07/08 Performance Report. 
 
Period 10 08/09 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
External Audit Report 
 
Direction of Travel. 
 
Council Plan 2009-2012. 
 
Employee Stress Survey  
 
Annual PACT review. 
 
PMB Work Programme 2008/2009. 
 

 
Note:  need to confirm if/when the Annual BDHT Performance Report is coming 

to the Board.  Similarly, the Local Neighbhourhood Partnership Business 
Case. 

 
 
 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 18th November 2008
	4 Artrix Performance Report
	Artrix Performance Appendix

	5 Spatial Project Benefits
	6 Sickness Absence
	Sickness Absence Appendix 1 a
	Sickness Absence Appendix 1 b
	Sickness Absence Appendix 1 c
	Sickness Absence Appendix 2
	Sickness Absence Appendix 3

	7 Performance Report (October 2008)
	Performance Report Oct 08 Appendix 1
	Performance Report Oct 08 Appendix 2
	Performance Report Oct 08 Appendix 3
	Performance Report Oct 08 Appendix 4

	8 Six Monthly Review of Estimated Outturn
	Six Monthly Review of Estimated Outturn Appendix

	9 Improvement Plan Exception Report (October 2008)
	10 Work Programme 2008/2009

